AGENDA

REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE SANTA FE SPRINGS
HOUSING SUCCESSOR
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

AND CITY COUNCIL

November 12, 2020
6:00 P.M.

VIA TELECONFERENCE

Annette Rodriguez, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
John M. Mora, Mayor Pro Tem
William K. Rounds, Mayor

****GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20****
**REGARDING CORONAVIRUS COVID-19**

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in
California as a result of the threat of COVID-19. The Governor has issued Executive
Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act, including allowing the
City Council to hold public meetings via teleconferencing and to make public meetings
accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public. Please
be advised that, until further notice, City Council meetings will be held by teleconference.
City Hall, including Council Chambers, is closed to the public.

You may attend the City Council meeting telephonically or electronically using the
following means:

Electronically using Zoom: Go to Zoom.us and click on “Join A Meeting” or use the
following
link:https://zoom.us/j/521620472?pwd=U3cyK1RuKzY1ekVGZFdKQXNZVzh4Zz09
Zoom Meeting ID: 521620472 Password: 659847

Telephonically:  Dial: 888-475-4499 Meeting ID: 521620472

Public Participation: You may submit public comments in writing by sending them to the
City Clerk at cityclerk@santafesprings.org. If you attend the meeting by telephone, you
must submit a public comment in writing to be heard. To ensure that they are received for
the meeting, please submit your written comments prior to 4:00 p.m. on the day of the
City Council meeting. You may also contact the City Clerk’s Office at (562) 868-0511 ext.
7314,




City of Santa Fe Springs
Regular Meetings November 12, 2020

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

Annette Rodriguez, Councilmember
Juanita Trujillo, Councilmember
Joe Angel Zamora, Councilmember
John M. Mora, Mayor Pro Tem
William K. Rounds, Mayor

PUBLIC COMMENTS This is the time when comments may be made by citizens on
matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council, on the agenda and not on the agenda.
Each citizen is limited to three (3) minutes.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR

CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the Housing
Successor.

Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Housing Successor Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

NEW BUSINESS

Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement
(ENA) by and between the Housing Successor to the Community Development
Commission of the City of Santa Fe Springs (‘Housing Successor”), The Whole Child, a
California_nonprofit public benefit corporation, Habitat For Humanity of Greater Los
Angeles and The Richman Group of California Development Company, LLC (jointly
known as “Developer”)

Recommendation:

e Approve the Amendment Number Three between the Housing Successor
and Developer which would allow the Agreement to continue in effect from
the Effective Date and to terminate on May 10, 2021; and

e Authorize an extension of the Exclusive Negotiating Period upon mutual
written agreement of the City Manager and the Developer for up to two (2)
additional ninety (90) calendar day periods, as needed to complete
negotiations of the Project Agreements and environmental review of the
Project; and

e Authorize the Mayor or designee to execute the Amendment Number
Three between the Housing Successor and Developer.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY

CONSENT AGENDA
Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the

2




City of Santa Fe Springs

Regular Meetings November 12, 2020

Successor Agency.

Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Successor Agency Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

CITY COUNCIL

7. CONSENT AGENDA

Consent Agenda items are considered routine matters which may be enacted by one motion and
vote. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately by the City
Council.

a. Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Reqular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

b. Community Facilities District No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) - Annual Special
Tax Levy Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20 (Public Works)
Recommendation:
* Receive and file the Special Tax Levy Annual Report for Community
Facilities District 2002-1 for Fiscal Year 2019-20.

c. Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 (Bloomfield-Florence) — Annual Special
Tax Levy Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20 (Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Receive and file the Special Tax Levy Annual Report for Community
Facilities District 2004-1 for Fiscal Year 2019-20.

NEW BUSINESS
8. Approval of 2021 Art Fest Event Professional Services Agreement (Community Services)
Recommendation:
o Authorize the Director of Community Services to execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Crepes and Grapes Café, LLC. Sandra Hahn,
for consulting services for the 2021 Art Fest event.

9. Appropriation of funds from City’s Art in Public Places fund for City’s Art Education Grant
Program for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (Community Services)
Recommendation:

e Approve the appropriation of funds from the City’s Art in Public Places
Fund (Activity 6350-6100)

e Authorize the distribution of monies as recommended by the Heritage Arts
Advisory Committee to fund the City’s Art Education Grant Program for
Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

10. [JApprove an Agreement with CalPERS to Establish a Pension Prefunding Trust through
the California Employers’ Pension Prefunding Trust (CEPPT) Program (Finance)
Recommendation:

3




11.

12.

13.

14.

City of Santa Fe Springs

Regular Meetings November 12, 2020

e Authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement with the California Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) for trust administration and
investment, and to approve the delegation of authority for disbursements
from the Pension Prefunding Trust.

Authorize the Purchase of a Pierce Arrow Fire Apparatus from South Coast Equipment
Inc., and Related Vehicle Communication Equipment and Financing (Fire)
Recommendation:
e Authorize the purchase of a Pierce Arrow XT PUC Fire Engine from South
Coast Equipment Inc., for an amount not to exceed $881,505.24:
e Authorize the purchase of communication equipment for the apparatus
from Motorola Solutions Inc. for an amount not to exceed $16,044.16;
» Authorize the purchase of a Mobile Data Computer (MDC) from DuraTech
USA, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $4,767.25;
» Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to enter into a master lease
financing agreement with Bank of America, National Association or
Designee with a 7-year term at an interest rate of 1.74% and annual
payments that will provide for complete ownership of the apparatus at the
end of the 7-year lease.
e Affirm that the City of Santa Fe Springs is Bank Qualified for this
transaction.

Acceptance of FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program (AFG) Funds for the
Purchase of Replacement Vehicle Exhaust Equipment for the Department of Fire-Rescue
(Fire)

Recommendation:

e Accept FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant funds in the amount of
$53,938 and authorize the purchase and installation of vehicle exhaust
equipment for Headquarters Fire Station (11300 Greenstone) and Fire
Station 3 (156517 Carmenita) from Air Exchange.

Town Center Plaza Parking Lot Improvements Project — Authorization to Advertise for
Construction Bids (Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Approve adding the Town Center Plaza Parking Lot Improvements
Project to the Capital Improvements Plan;
e Approve the Plans and Specifications; and
e Authorize the City Engineer to advertise for construction bids.

City’s Batting Cage Facility Concession Agreement — Approve One Year Extension
(Public Works)
Recommendation:
* Approve Contract Amendment Number Two with Henry Hernandez to
extend the term of the Agreement for One Year; and
» Authorize the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment Number Two.

4




15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

City of Santa Fe Springs

Regular Meetings November 12, 2020

Water Feature Maintenance Service Agreement — Approval of One Year Extension
(Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Approve Contract Amendment Number One with Payless Pool Service
Company to extend the term of the Agreement for One Year; and
e Authorize the Mayor to execute Contract Amendment Number One.

Bridge at Telegraph Road and Norwalk Boulevard — Funding for Purchase of LED Lighting
(Public Works)
Recommendation:
e Accept the bids;
e Appropriate $28,495 from General Fund to a 9000 account; and
e Issue a purchase order in the amount of $28,495 to Walters Wholesale
Electric Co. of Santa Fe Springs, California.

CITY MANAGER’S AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS
COUNCIL COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

Americans with Disabilities Act: In compliance with the ADA, if you need special assistance to participate
in a City meeting or other services offered by this City, please contact the City Clerk’s Office. Notification
of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring
that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service.

I, Janet Martinez, City Clerk for the City of Santa Fe Springs, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury under
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing agenda was posted at the following locations; city’s
website at www.santafesprings.org; and the Town Center Plaza (Kiosk), 11740 Telegraph Road, not less
than 72 hours prior to the meeting.

November 5, 2020
Janet Maftinez, CMC, City Clerk Date Posted




FOR ITEM NO. 4
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 7A




<z City of Santa Fe Springs ITEM NO. 5

Housing Successor November 12, 2020

NEW BUSINESS

Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement
(ENA) by and between the Housing Successor to the Community Development
Commission of the city of Santa Fe Springs (‘Housing Successor”), The Whole Child,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, Habitat For Humanity of Greater Los
Angeles and The Richman Group of California Development Company, LLC (jointly
known as “Developer”).

RECOMMENDATIONS:

e Approve the Amendment Number Three between the Housing Successor and

- Developer which would allow the Agreement to continue in effect from the

.~ Effective Date and to terminate on May 10, 2021; and j

e Authorize an extension of the Exclusive Negotiating Period upon mutual written
agreement of the City Manager and the Developer for up to two (2) additional
ninety (90) calendar day periods, as needed to complete negotiations of the
Project Agreements and environmental review of the Project; and

e Authorize the mayor or designee to execute the Amendment Number Three
between the Housing Successor and Developer. '

BACKGROUND

On March 28, 2019, the Housing Successor entered into an Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement (ENA) with The Whole Child, a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation, Habitat For Humanity of Greater Los Angeles and The Richman Group of
California Development Company, LLC (jointly known as “Developer”), for certain real
property, at the northeast and northwest corner of Lakeland Road and Laurel Avenue,
comprises of several distinct parcels of land (APN’s: 8011-012-902, 8011-011-902,
8011-011-906,and 8011-011-907). The intent of both the Housing Successor and the
Developer in entering into the ENA was to establish a specific, limited period of time to
negotiate a future agreement between them governing the potential development of
the real property into an affordable housing project, all subject to mutually agreeable
terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and agreements, to be documented in a
Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA). The proposed Project would consist
of a transitional housing component for homeless families (The Whole Child), a low-
income rental housing component with social services (The Richman Group), and an
affordable for-sale component (Habitat For Humanity) prioritizing veteran families.

At its March 26, 2020, City Council meeting, the City Council approved Amendment
Number One to the ENA, pursuant to Section 2 (a) “Term of Agreement,” which
extended the Negotiation Period for an additional 120-day extension period, by mutual
agreement. The ENA was further extended (Amendment Number Two) by action of
the City Council on July 9, 2020, so as to terminate on October 27, 2020.

Report Submitted By: W. Morrell, Planning and Development Dept. Date of Report: November 5, 2020



Amendment Number Three to ENA Page 2 of 3

Most recently, the Planning Commission at its meeting of October 12, 2020, made the

following recommendations:

¢ That the sale of four (4) parcels (APN: 8011-012-902, 8011-011-906, 8011-011-907,
and 8011-011-912) conforms to the stated provisions of the City of Santa Fe Springs
General Plan; and

¢ That the sale of the four (4) parcels (APN: 8011-012-902, 8011-011-906, 8011-011-
907, and 8011-011-912), is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3)-Activities Covered by
General Rule; and

o Adopt Resolution No. 175-2020, which incorporates the Planning Commission’s
findings and actions regarding this matter, and recommend that the City Council
concur with the findings of the Planning Commission. the sale of the real property
conforms to the stated

Pursuant to §65402 of the Government Code, the Planning Commission must first
make a finding that all four parcels conforms to the provisions of the City's General
Plan, before the four parcels can be sold. This action by the Planning Commission, is
the first and necessary step required for the disposition of the property.

During the terms of the ENA, much progress has been made, including the drafting of

a Preliminary Purchase, Sale and Development Agreement, a Preliminary Loan

Agreement, and an Assignment of Work Product Agreement. Other progress include:

e Confirmation and early implementation by The Whole Child of a $4 million grant
towards the transitional housing component by County of Los Angeles Supervisor's
Hahn’s office. This grant is now escrowed and administered by Brilliant Corners and
is being supervised by Housing for Health.

 Confirmation by The Whole Child of an additional $1 million grant from the Bezos’
Foundation for the transitional housing component.

» Confirmation by the Lakeland Collaborative with the California Department of Housing
and Community Development the proposed development will meet the City of Santa
Fe Springs’ Regional Housing Needs Assessment requirements as they relate the
City’s Housing Element.

* Due diligence, concept design, entitlement submittal, environmental analysis and
financial analysis resulting in an investment by the development partnership of nearly
$200,000.

» Submission of design entitlements including architectural, civil and subdivision
designs.

* Completion of the draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) report and
Mitigated Negative Declaration for entitlement processing (currently under review by
the City & County).

» Completion of negotiations for purchase & sale agreement(s), predevelopment
funding agreement(s) and project funding agreement(s).

» Completed financial review and recommendation(s) by the City’'s advisor MDG
Associates.

Report Submitted By: W. Morrell, Planning and Development Dept. Date of Report: November 5, 2020




Amendment Number Three to ENA Page 3 of 3

Notwithstanding the aforementioned, the Developer has requested additional time to
work through final edits to the Mitigated Negative Declaration with the City and County,
to publish for public review, to finalize exhibits for all agreements, to schedule final
approval of design and environmental documents with the Planning Department and
for final execution of the agreements.

LEGAL REVIEW
The City’s Legal Counsel has reviewed the Amendment.

FISCAL IMPACT
The Amendment would have no impact on the general fund. It would, however, provide
the Developer time to complete negotiations and to finalize all agreements.

= I
Raymond R. Cruz.

City Manager

Attachment(s):

Amendment Number Three
Extension Letter Request
Amendment Number Two
Amendment Number One
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement

oW~

Report Submitted By: W. Morrell, Planning and Development Dept. Date of Report: November 5, 2020




AMENDMENT NUMBER THREE
EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING AGREEMENT

This Amendment Number Three (“Amendment”) to Section 2 (a) of the Exclusive
Negotiating Agreement (‘Agreement”), is made and entered into this 9t day of November,
2020, by and between the Housing Successor to the Community Development
Commission of the City of Santa Fe Springs (‘Housing Successor”) The Whole Child, A
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, Habitat For Humanity of Greater Los
Angeles and The Richman Group of California Development Company, LLC (jointly
known as “Developer”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2019, the Housing Successor and Developer
entered into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement for certain real property located at
Lakeland Road and Laurel Avenue, comprised of two distinct parcels of land and more
specifically described in the legal description attached to this Agreement as Exhibit ‘A’
(‘Property’) and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference; and

WHEREAS, The Developer has proposed the redevelopment of the Property as
an affordable housing development; and

WHEREAS, The intent of both the City and the Developer in entering into this
Agreement is to establish a specific, limited period of time to negotiate a future agreement
between them governing the potential development of the Project on the Property, all
subject to mutually agreeable terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and agreements;
and

WHEREAS, at its March 26, 2020, City Council meeting, the City Council approved
Amendment Number One to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) pursuant to
Section 2 (a) “Term of Agreement,” which extended the Negotiation Period for an
additional 120-day extension period, by mutual agreement; and

WHEREAS, The Exclusive Negotiating Period was further extended under its
terms by action of the City Council on July 9, 2020, so as to terminate on October 27,
2020 prior to full completion of the negotiations and performance of all duties of the
Developer; and.

WHEREAS, the Parties, by mutual consent, desire to continue pursuing the
feasibility of the Project and negotiating an agreement or agreements (either a Disposition
and Development Agreement (“DDA”) or a Purchase and Sale Agreement (“PSA”) and a
Development Agreement (“DA”), as determined by the Parties) (referred to herein as the
“Project Agreements”) to provide for the disposition of the Site and development of the
Project in accordance with the City’'s General Plan and Zoning Code as amended from
time to time, and to complete all required California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”)
review and documentation.




NOW THEREFORE, certain provision(s) of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement is
hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 2 (a), entitled “Term of Agreement” is hereby amended to
read as follows:

(@)

The rights and duties of the Housing Successor and the Developer
established by this Agreement shall commence on the first date on which all
of the following have occurred (the 'Effective Date'): (1) execution of this
Agreement by the authorized representative(s) of the Developer and delivery
of such executed Agreement to the Housing Successor and (2) execution of
this Agreement by the authorized representative(s) of the Housing Successor
and delivery of such executed Agreement to the Developer. The Housing
Successor shall deliver a fully executed counterpart original of this Agreement
to the Developer, within five (5) business days following the execution of this
Agreement by the authorized representative(s) of the Housing Successor.
This Agreement shall continue in effect from the Effective Date and shall
terminate on May 10, 2021.The Exclusive Negotiating Period may be
extended upon the mutual written agreement of the City Manager and the
Developer for up to two (2) additional ninety (90) calendar day periods, as
needed to complete negotiations of the Project Agreements and
environmental review of the Project. Any officer of Developer shall be
authorized to grant such extension for and on behalf of Developer. If the
Parties have mutually consented to an extension of the term of this
Agreement as provided herein, then the Parties shall, within such extended
term, continue to negotiate in good faith the proposed Project Agreements.

SECTION 2. Except as set forth herein, all other provisions of the Exclusive
Negotiating Agreement as previously amended, shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be
executed by and through their respective authorized officers, as of the date and year first
written above.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR DEVELOPER
OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
WHOLE CHILD
By: / By: /
Signature Date Signature Date

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

By: /
Signature Date




THE RICHMAN GROUP OF

CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LLC

By: /
Sighature Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

vy M. Tsai, Legal Counsel
Housing Successor Attorney




EXHIBIT ‘A’

Property Legal Description

A.P.N. 8011-012-912

LOT 13 OF TRACT 5309, IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, COUNTY
OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 64
PAGES 398 AND 39 OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID
COUNTY.

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF SAID LOT 13 DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 13 THENCE ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, NORTH 89° 55" EAST 234.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 405.55 FEET TO A
POINT IN THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, DISTANT NORTH 89° 55" EAST 234.63 FEET FROM THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT, THENCE SOUTH 89° 55" WEST 234.63 FEET TO SAID NORTHWEST
CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 405.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

ALSO EXCEPT ALL OIL, GAS OR OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES IN SAID LAND
AND ALSO EXCEPTING AND RESERVING ALL INTEREST UNDER THE COMMUNITY OIL AND GAS
LEASE KNOWN AS “GAULDIN COMMUNITY OIL LEASE,” DATED SEPTEMBER 7, 1951, EXECUTED IN
VARIOUS COUNTERPARTS IN FAVOR OF T. & T. 011 COMPANY, A PARTNERSHIP, COMPOSED OF
WALTER N. THOMPSON, HORACE W. THOMPSON AND JACK H. THOMPSON, PARTNERS, AS LESSEE;
A COUNTERPART “ORIGINAL” THEREOF EXECUTED BY VERONICA CONDON NATHHORST, ET AL,
WAS REGISTERED ON NOVEMBER 26, 1961 AS DOCUMENT NO. 31139-T AND RECORDED MARCH 12,
1952 AS INSTRUMENT NO 1615 IN BOOK 38460 PAGE 34 OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS EXCEPTED AND
RESERVED BY VERONICA CONDON NATHHORST, A WIDOW B DEED RECORDED MARCH 11, 1959. .

A.P.N. 8011-011-912
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles, state
of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 1 of Parcel Map No. 25238, Filed in book 288 pages 65 and 66 of Parcel Maps, in the office
of the county recorder of said county.

A.P.N. 8011-011-906
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles, state
of California, and is described as follows:




Parcel 2 of Parcel Map No. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in the office
of the county recorder of said county.

A.P.N. 8011-011-907
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles, state
of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 3 of Parcel Map No. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in the office
of the county recorder of said county.




Collahorative

November 4%, 2020

Mr. Wayne M. Morrell
Director of Planning

City of Santa Fe Springs
11710 Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

Re: Exclusive Negotiation Agreement — Request for Extension
Lakeland Road & Laurel Avenue Affordable Residential Project

Dear Mr. Morrell,

The City of Santa Fe Springs and members of the Lakeland Collaborative Development Team (“Lakeland
Collaborative”) including The Whole Child, Habitat for Humanity and The Richman Group executed an
Exclusive Negotiation Agreement {(“ENA”) on March 28, 2019 for purposes of conceptualizing and
negotiating terms for an affordable housing project built on City of Santa Fe Springs Successor Agency
owned property. The proposed project was intended to include a transitional housing component for
homeless families, low-income rental housing component with social services and affordable for-sale
component prioritizing veteran families. The original ENA included a 365-day term plus a 120-day
extension resulting in an expiration date of July 26, 2020. This term was executed pursuant to the 1*
Amendment of the ENA for an additional 90-days, resulting in an expiration date of 10/26/20.

During the ENA, the Lakeland Collaborative completed preliminary due diligence and design. The
development team then submitted and updated a project concept with financial underwriting on four
(4) different occasions allowing for a cycle of review and feedback.

This process and partnership between the City of Santa Fe Springs and the Lakeland Collaborative has
resulted in the following points of progress:

« Confirmation and early implementation by The Whole Child of a $4 million grant towards the
transitional housing component by County of Los Angeles Supervisor’s Hahn's office. This grant
is now escrowed and administered by Brilliant Corners and is being supervised by Housing for
Health.

¢ Confirmation by The Whole Child of an additional $1 million grant from the Bezos’ Foundation
for the transitional housing component.

e Confirmation by the Lakeland Collaborative with the California Department of Housing and
Community Development the proposed development will meet the City of Santa Fe Springs’
Regional Housing Needs Assessment requirements as they relate the City’s Housing Element.




¢ Due diligence, concept design, entitlement submittal, environmental analysis and financial
analysis resulting in a investment by the development partnership of nearly $200,000.

e Submission of design entitlements including architectural, civil and subdivision designs.

¢ Completion of the draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) report and Mitigated
Negative Declaration for entitlement processing (currently under review by the City & County).

e Completion of negotiations for purchase & sale agreement(s), predevelopment funding
agreement(s) and project funding agreement(s).

e Completed financial review and recommendation(s) by the City’s advisor MDG Associates.

The Lakeland Collaborative has enjoyed a productive relationship with City staff and we are very eager
to proceed with this very unique and balanced housing asset for the City of Santa Fe Springs. It is our
assessment that we will need another 90-days to work through final edits to the Mitigated Negative
Declaration with the City and County, publish for public review, finalize exhibits for the above
referenced development agreements, and schedule for final approval of design & environmental
documents with the planning department and final execution of the development agreements. While
we are requesting a 90-day extension, we advise the City allow for an additional 90-day extension,
approval for which be granted to the City Manager, for a total extension of 180-days.

Sincerely,

The Lakel nd Collaborative

Con
The Whole Child

Darrell Simien
Habitat for Humanity

Rick Westberg
The Richman Group




AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO
EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING AGREEMENT

This Amendment Number Two (“Amendment”) to Section 2 (a) of the Exclusive
Negotiating Agreement (‘Amendment”), is made and entered into this 9" day of July 2020,
by and between the Housing Successor to the Community Development Commission of
the city of Santa Fe Springs (‘Housing Successor”) The Whole Child, A California
nonprofit public benefit corporation, Habitat For Humanity of Greater Los Angeles and
The Richman Group of California Development Company, LLC (jointly known as
“Developer”)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2019, the Housing Successor and Developer
entered into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement for certain real property located at
Lakeland Road and Laurel Avenue, comprised of two distinct parcels of land and more
specifically described in the legal description attached to this Agreement as Exhibit ‘A’
(‘Property’) and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference; and

WHEREAS, The Developer has proposed the redevelopment of the Property as
an affordable mixed-use housing development; and

WHEREAS, The intent of both the City and the Developer in entering into this
Agreement is to establish a specific, limited period of time to negotiate a future agreement
between them governing the potential development of the Project on the Property, all
subject to mutually agreeable terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and agreements
to be documented in a DDA; and

WHEREAS, at its March 26, 2020, City Council meeting, the City Council approved
Amendment Number One to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) pursuant to
Section 2 (a) “Term of Agreement,” which extended the Negotiation Period for an
additional 120-day extension period, by mutual agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2 (a) Terms of Agreement: The Negotiation
Period may be extended only by mutual agreement of the Parties in a written amendment
to this Agreement executed by authorized representative(s) of the Parties; and

WHEREAS, the Parties, by mutual consent, are desirous of amending the
Agreement, pursuant to Section 2 (a), “Term of Agreement,” for an additional 90-day
extension period (Amendment Number Two).

NOW THEREFORE, certain provision(s) of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement is
hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 1. . Section 2 (a), entitled “Term of Agreement” is hereby amended, to
extend the Negotiation Period for an additional 90-day extension period, (Amendment
Number Two), commencing July 26, 2020, by mutual agreement.




SECTION 2. Except as provided herein, Section 2 (a), entitled “Term of
Agreement” shall otherwise remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. Except as set forth herein, all other provisions of the Exclusive
Negotiating Agreement and Amendment Number One, shall remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be
executed by and through their respective authorized officers, as of the date and year first
written above.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR DEVELOPER
OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
WH(/)LE C -IL \
By:w.ﬂm- K @L—- /071 /I‘L/W By: W7 / U/;/ZD
William K. Rounds, Mayor Date ! Signatuye Date
ATTEST.: HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
o ) [ P
ﬁr}ct Mattinez, City Clerk Signature\_/ Date
APPROVED AS TO FORM: THE RICHMAN GROUP OF
" CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LLC
lvy M. Ts&iLegal Counsel {
Housing Successor Attorney By: /

Signat N Date



EXHIBIT ‘A’

Property Legal Description

A.P.N. 8011-012-912

LOT 13 OF TRACT 5309, IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS,
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN
BOOK 64 PAGES 398 AND 39 OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY
RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF SAID LOT 13 DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 13’ THENCE ALONG THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, NORTH 89° 55" EAST 234.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 405.55 FEET
TO A POINT IN THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, DISTANT NORTH 89° 565" EAST 234.63 FEET
FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT, THENCE SOUTH 89° 55" WEST 234.63 FEET TO
SAID NORTHWEST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 405.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

ALSO EXCEPT ALL OIL, GAS OR OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES IN SAID
LAND AND ALSO EXCEPTING AND RESERVING ALL INTEREST UNDER THE COMMUNITY OIL AND
GAS LEASE KNOWN AS “GAULDIN COMMUNITY OIL LEASE,” DATED SEPTEMBER 7, 1951,
EXECUTED IN VARIOUS COUNTERPARTS IN FAVOR OF T. & T. 011 COMPANY, A PARTNERSHIP,
COMPOSED OF WALTER N. THOMPSON, HORACE W. THOMPSON AND JACK H. THOMPSON,
PARTNERS, AS LESSEE; A COUNTERPART “ORIGINAL" THEREOF EXECUTED BY VERONICA
CONDON NATHHORST, ET AL., WAS REGISTERED ON NOVEMBER 26, 1961 AS DOCUMENT NO.
31139-T AND RECORDED MARCH 12, 1952 AS INSTRUMENT NO 1615 IN BOOK 38460 PAGE 34
OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS EXCEPTED AND RESERVED BY VERONICA CONDON NATHHORST, A
WIDOW B DEED RECORDED MARCH 11, 1959.

A.P.N. 8011-011-912
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los
Angeles, state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 1 of Parcel Map No. 25238, Filed in book 288 pages 65 and 66 of Parcel Maps, in
the office of the county recorder of said county.

A.P.N. 8011-011-906
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los
Angeles, state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 2 of Parcel Map No. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in
the office of the county recorder of said county.

A.P.N. 8011-011-907
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los
Angeles, state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 3 of Parcel Map No. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in
the office of the county recorder of said county.




AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE
EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING AGREEMENT

This Amendment Number One (“Amendment”) to Section 2 (a) of the Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement (‘Amendment”) dated March 26, 2020, by and between the Housing Successor to
the Community Development Commission of the city of Santa Fe Springs (‘Housing
Successor”) The Whole Child, A California nonprofit public benefit corporation, Habitat
For Humanity of Greater Los Angeles and The Richman Group of California Development
Company, LLC (jointly known as “Developer”), is made and entered into this 26th day of March
2019 (“Effective Date”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2019, the Housing Successor and Developer entered
into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement for certain real property located at Lakeland Road and
Laurel Avenue, comprised of two distinct parcels of land and more specifically described in the
legal description attached to this Agreement as Exhibit ‘A’ (‘Property’) and incorporated into this
Agreement by this reference; and

WHEREAS, The Developer has proposed the redevelopment of the Property as an
affordable mixed-use housing development; and

WHEREAS, The intent of both the City and the Developer in entering into this Agreement
is to establish a specific, limited period of time to negotiate a future agreement between them
governing the potential development of the Project on the Property, all subject to mutually
agreeable terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and agreements to be documented in a DDA,
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2 (a) Terms of Agreement: The effective date of the
Agreement was March 26, 2019 and the 365 day initial term is due to expire March 25, 2020.

WHEREAS, Section 2 (a) Terms of Agreement: further provides that the Parties may
extend the Negotiation Period for an additional 120-day extension period, by mutual agreement;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2 (a) Terms of Agreement: The Negotiation Period may
be extended only by written amendment to this Agreement executed by authorized
representative(s) of the Parties; and

WHEREAS, the Parties, by mutual consent, are desirous of amending the Agreement,
pursuant to Section 2 (), Terms of Agreement, for an additional 120-day extension period.

NOW THEREFORE, certain provision(s) of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement is hereby
amended as follows:

SECTION 1. . Section 2 (), entitled “Terms of Agreement” is hereby amended to extend
the Negotiation Period for an additional 120-day “extension period,” commencing March 26, 2020,
by mutual agreement.




SECTION 2. Except as provided herein, Section 2 (a), entitled “Terms of Agreement” shall
otherwise remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. Except as set forth herein, all other provisions of the Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B, shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed
by and through their respective authorized officers, as of the date and year first written above.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR DEVELOPER
OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
WHOLE CHILD
By: / By: /
Signature Date Signature Date
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
By: /
Signature Date

THE RICHMAN GROUP OF

CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY, LLC

By: /

Signature Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Ivy M. Tsai, Legal Counsel
Housing Successor Attorney




HOUSING SUCCESSOR OF SANTA FE SPRINGS

EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT
(Lakeland Road and Laurel Avenue Affordable Residential Project)

THIS EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT (‘Agreement’) is dated as of March
28, 2019 for reference purposes only, and is entered into by and between the Housing Successor
to the Community Development Commission of the City of Santa Fe Springs (“Housing

‘Successor”), The Whole Child, a California nonprofit public benefit cotporation Habitat for

Humanity of Greater Los Angeles, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, and The
Richman Group of California Development Company, LLC (jointly known as “Developer”) to
provide a specified period of time to negotiate a disposition and development agreement (“DDA™).
The City and Developer are sometimes referred to in this Agreement individually, as a ‘Party’ and,
collectively, as the “Parties.” This Agreement is entered into by the Parties with reference to the
following recited facts (each, a ‘Recital’):

RECITALS

A. The Housing Successor is the current owner of certain real property located at
Iakeland Road and Laurel Avenue, in the City of Santa Fe Springs (“City”) comprised of four
distinct parcels of land and mote specifically described in the legal description attached to this
Agteement as Exhibit ‘A’ (‘Property’) and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference; and

B. The Developer has proposed the redevelopment of the Property as an affordable
mixed-use housing development (“Project™), and

C. The intent of both the Housing Successor and the Developer in entering into this
Agreement is to establish a specific, limited period of time to negotiate a future agreement between
them governing the potential development of the Project on the Property, all subject to mutually
agreeable terms, conditions, covenants, restrictions and agreements to be documented in a DDA.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN VIEW OF THE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES OF THE
HOUSING SUCCESSOR RELATING TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT AND
THE PROMISES OF THE HOUSING SUCCESSOR AND THE DEVELOPER SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT, THE HOUSING SUCCESSOR AND THE DEVELOPER AGREE, AS
FOLLOWS:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals of fact set forth above are true and correct
and are incorporated into this Agreement, in their entirety, by this reference.

2. Term of Agreement.

(a)  The rights and duties of the Housing Successor and the Developer
established by this Agreement shall commence on the first date on which all of the following have
occurred (the ‘Effective Date’): (1) execution of this Agreement by the authorized
representative(s) of the Developer and delivery of such executed Agreement to the Housing




Successor and (2) execution of this Agreement by the authorized representative(s) of the Housing
Successor and delivery of such executed Agreement to the Developer. The Housing Successor
shall deliver a fully executed counterpart original of this Agreement to the Developer, within five
(5) business days following the execution of this Agreement by the authorized representative(s) of
the Housing Successor. This Agreement shall continue in effect for the period of 365 consecutive
calendar days immediately following the Effective Date (‘Negotiation Period”). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Parties have not executed and delivered the DDA within such 365-day petiod,
the Parties may extend the Negotiation Period for an additional 120-day extension period, by
mutual agreement, The Negotiation Period may be extended only by written amendment to this
Agreement executed by authorized representative(s) of the Parties.

(b)  This Agreement shall automatically expire and be of no further force or
effect at the end of the Negotiation Period, unless, prior to that time, both the Housing Successor
staff and the Developer approve an extension of the ENA for an additional period of time
acceptable to both the Housing Successor and the Developer.

3. Obligations of the Parties.

(a) Obligations of Developer. During the Negotiation Period, the Developer
shall proceed diligently and in good faith to develop and present to Housing Successor staff and,
subsequently, to the Fousing Successor Board, for review, all of the following:

) A proposed conceptual development plan for the Project on the
Property that describes and depicts: (1) the location and placement of proposed buildings and (2)
the architecture and elevations of the proposed buildings;

(i)  Proposed zoning change or changes to the City’s General Plan, if
any, necessary to accommodate the Project on the Property;

(i) A proposed time schedule and cost estimates for the development of
the Project on the Property; and

(iv) A proposed financing plan identifying financing sources for all
private and public improvements proposed for the Project.

(v) A preliminary project proforma which includes development costs,
including, but not limited to, construction and non-construction costs, and project income and
return,

(b) Obligations of Housing Successor. During the Negotiation Period, the
Housing Successor shall proceed diligently and in good faith to perform the following:

) Enter into a Right of Entry Agreement with Developer substantially
. in the form attached as Exhibit D hereto within five (5) days of the Effective Date;

(i)  Provide the Developer with access to the Property duting the
Negotiation Period for the purpose of performing due diligence activities in accordance therewith;
and :




, (iiiy  Provide Developer with a preliminary title report for the Property in
accordance with the Timeline.

5. Milestone Schedule. Housing Successor and Developer acknowledge and agree
that all submittals required by this Agreement shall be made pursuant to the time schedule attached
hereto as Exhibit C, as may be amended administratively by Executive Director of the Housing
Successor with the concurrence of Developer; provided that the timeline does not exceed the
Negotiation Period.

6. Negotiation of DDA. During the Negotiation Period, the Housing Successor and
the Developer shall negotiate diligently and in good faith to negotiate a DDA between them. The
Housing Successor shall not negotiate with any entity other than the Developer regarding the
development of the Property or solicit or entertain bids or proposals to do so. The Housing
Successor and the Developer shall generally cooperate with each other and supply such documents
and information as may be reasonably requested by the other to facilitate the conduct of the
negotiations. Both the Housing Successor and the Developer shall exercise reasonable efforts to
complete discussions relating to the terms and conditions of a DDA and such other matters, as may
be mutually acceptable to both the Housing Successor and the Developer, in their respective sole
discretion. The exact terms and conditions of a DDA, if any, shall be determined during the course
of these negotiations. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or consirued to be a
representation or agreement by either the Housing Successor or the Developer that a mutually
acceptable DDA will be produced from negotiations under this Agreement. Nothing in this
Agreement shall impose any obligation on either Party to agree to a definitive DDA in the future.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed to be a guaranty, wattanty or
representation that any proposed DDA that may be negotiated by Housing Successor staff and the
Developer will be approved by the Housing Successor governing body. The Developer
acknowledges and agrees that the City consideration of any DDA is subject to the sole and absolute
discretion of the City governing body and all legally required public hearings, public meetings,
notices, factual findings and other determinations required by law.

7. Restrictions Against Change in Ownership, Management and Control of
Developer and Assignment of Agreement.

(8)  The qualifications and identity of the Developer and its principals are of
particular concern to the Housing Successor. It is because of these qualifications and identity that
the Housing Successor has entered into this Agreement with the Developer. During the
Negotiation Period, no voluntary or involuntary successor-in-interest of the Developer shall
acquire any rights or powers under this Agreement, except as provided in Section 7(c).

()  The Housing Successor shall consider additional resources requested by the
Developer, financial or institutional, for the successful execution of the Project.

(6)  The Developer shall promptly notify the Housing Successor in writing of
any and all additions or changes whatsoever in the identity of the business entities or individuals
either comprising or in Control (as defined in Section 7(d)) of the Developer, as well as any and
all changes in the interest or the'degree of Control of the Developer by any such person, of which
information the Developer or any of its shareholders, partners, members, directors, managers or




officers are notified or may otherwise have knowledge or information. Upon the occurrence of
any significant or material change, whether voluntary or involuntary, in ownership, management
or Control of the Developer (other than such changes occasioned by the death or incapacity of any
individual) that has not been approved by the Housing Successor, prior to the time of such change,
the Housing Successor may terminate this Agreement, without liability to the Developer or any
other person, by sending written notice of termination to the Developer, referencing this Section
7(b).

(@)  The Developer may assign its rights under this Agreement to an Affiliate
(as defined in Section 7(d)), on the condition that such Affiliate expressly assumes all of the
obligations of the Developer under this Agreement in writing reasonably satisfactory to the
Housing Successor.

(6)  For purposes of this Agreement, the term ‘Affiliate’ means any person,
directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under common control with the Developer,
whether by direct or indirect ownership of equity interests, by contract, or otherwise. For the
purposes of this agreement, ‘Control’ means possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of an entity, whether by ownership of
equity interests, by contract, or otherwise.

8. Obligations to Review Draft Agreements and Attend Meetings.

(8) During the Negotiation Period, the Developer shall diligently review and
comment on drafts of a DDA prepared by the Housing Successor’s legal counsel and, if the terms
and conditions of such a DDA are agteed upon between Housing Successor staff and the
Developer, submit the DDA fully executed by the authorized representative(s) of the Developer to
the Housing Successor’s Executive Director for submission to the Housing Successor governing
body for review and approval or disapproval. Any future DDA shall consist of terms and
conditions acceptable to both the Developer and the Housing Successor governing body, in their
respective sole and absolute discretion.

(b)  During the Negotiation Period, the Developer shall also keep the Housing
Successor governing body and staff advised on the progress of the Developer in performing its
obligations under this Agreement, on a regular basis or as requested by Housing Successor staff,
inctuding, without limitation, having one ot more of the Developer’s employees or consultants
who are knowledgeable regarding this Agteement, the design and planning of the Project and the
progress of negotiation of a DDA, such that such person(s) can meaningfully respond to Housing
Successor questions regarding the progress of the design and planning of the Project or the
negotiation of a DDA attend both: (1) weekly meetings or conference calls with Housing
Successor staff, as reasonably scheduled by Housing Successor staff during the Negotiation Period
(each, a “Weekly Meeting’), and (2) meetings of the Housing Successor governing body, when
reasonably requested to do so by Housing Successor staff.

' (¢)  Developer and Housing Successor shall use commercially reasonable best
efforts to perform the tasks set forth in the Timeline within the times set forth therein.




9. Developer to Pay All Costs and Expenses. All fees or expenses of engineers,
architects, financial consultants, legal, planning or other consultants or contractors, retained by the
Developer for any study, analysis, evaluation, report, schedule, estimate, environmental review,
planning and/or design activities, drawings, specifications or other activity or matter relating to the
Property or the Project ot negotiation of a DDA that may be undertaken by the Developer during
the Negotiation Period, pursuant to or in reliance upon this Agreement or in the Developer's
discretion, regarding any matter relating to a DDA, the Property or the Project, shall be the sole
responsibility of and undertaken at the sole cost and expense of the Developer and no such activity
or matter shall be deemed to be undertaken for the benefit of, at the expense of or in reliance upon
the Housing Successor. The Developer shall also pay all fees, charges and costs, make all deposits
and provide all bonds or other security associated with the submission to and processing by the
Housing Successor and/or the City of any and all applications and other documents and
information to be submitted to the Housing Successor and/or the City by the Developer pursuant
to this Agreement or otherwise associated with the Project, including, but not limited to, any study,
analysis, evaluation, report, schedule, estimate, environmental review, planning and/or design
activities, drawings, specifications or other activity or maiter relating to the Property or the Project
or negotiation of a DDA that may be undertaken by the Housing Successor during the Negotiation
Period. The Housing Successor shall not be obligated to pay or reimburse any expenses, fees,
charges or costs incuired by the Developer in pursuit of any study, analysis, evaluation, report,
schedule, estimate, environmental review, planning and/or design activities, drawings,
specifications or other activity ot matter relating to the Property or the Project or negotiation of a
DDA that may be undertaken by the Developer during the Negotiation Period, whether or not this
Agreement is, eventually, terminated or extended or a DDA is entered into between the Housing
Successor and the Developer, in the future.

10.  Hazardous Materials and Development Assessment. During the Negotiating
Petriod, Developer may conduct such inspections, tests, surveys, and other analyses (“Inspections”)
as Developer deems reasonably necessary to determine the condition of the Property or the
feasibility of designing, developing, constructing, leasing and financing the Project but shall not
be obligated to complete such Inspections within the Negotiating Period. However, failure to
complete the inspections shall not be grounds for extension of the Negotiating Period, unless both
Parties agree. Housing Successor shall make available to Developer, upon Developer’s written
request, existing information and plans in its possession regarding the Property. The Developer at
its sole cost and expense shall conduet or cause to be conducted environmental assessments, audits
and/or testing and any other activities, audits, tests and assessments to determine the feasibility of
the Project (“Tests”) of the Property. The Developer shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement if the Developer is not reasonably satisfied with the findings and the recommendations
made in the Tests, or if the Project is determined not to be feasible in the sole discretion of the
Developer. However, both Parties acknowledge and agree that specific representations or
warranties, agreements, obligations, liabilities or responsibilities pertaining to the condition or title
of the Property and/or the Project may be the subject of negotiations between the Parties in
connection with the negotiations of any DDA or other agreement entered into by the Parties.

11.  Housing Successor Not To Negotiate With Others.

(2 During the Negotiation Period, the Housing Successor shall not negotiate
with any other person regarding the sale or redevelopment of the Property. The term ‘negotiate,’




as used in this Agreement, means and refers to engaging in any discussions with a person other
than the Developet, regardless of how initiated, with respect to that person’s redevelopment of the
Property to the total or partial exclusion of the Developer from redeveloping the Property, without
the Developer’s written consent, subject to the provisions of Section 10(b) and further provided
that the Housing Successor may receive and retain unsolicited offers regarding redevelopment of
the Property, but shall not negotiate with the proponent of any such offer during the Negotiation
Period; provided, however, that the Housing Successor may discuss the fact that the Housing
Successor is a party to this Agreement.

(b)  Nothing in this Agreement shall limit, prevent, restrict or inhibit the
Housing Successor from providing any information in its possession or control that would
customarily be furnished to persons requesting information from the Housing Successor
concerning the Housing Successor's activities, goals, matters of a similar nature relating to
implementation of the project as required by law to be disclosed, upon request or otherwise.

12.  Acknowledgments and Reservations.

(a)  The Housing Successor and the Developer agree that, if this Agreement
expires or is terminated for any reason, or a future DDA is not approved and executed by both the
Housing Successor and the Developer, for any reason, neither the Housing Successor nor the
Developer shall be under any obligation, nor have any liability to each other or any other person
regarding the sale or other disposition of the Property or the redevelopment of the Property.

(b)  The Developer acknowledges and agrees that no provision of this
Agreement shall be deemed to be an offer by the Housing Successor, nor an acceptance by the
Housing Succéssor of any offer or proposal from the Developer for the Housing Successor to
convey any estate or interest in the Property to the Developer or for the Housing Successor to
provide any financial or other assistance to the Developer for redevelopment of the Project or the
Property.

(© The Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Developer has not
acquired, nor will acquire, by virtue of the terms of this Agreement, any legal or equitable interest
in real or personal property from the Housing Successor.

(d)  Certain development standards and design controls for the Project may be
established between the Developer and the Housing Successor, but it is understood and agreed
between the Housing Successor and the Developer that the Project and the redevelopment of the
Property must conform to all Housing Successor, City and other applicable governmental
development, land use and architectural regulations and standards. Drawings, plans and
specifications for the Project shall be subject to the approval of the Housing Successor and the
City, through the standard development application process in the community. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be considered approval of any plans or specifications for the Project or of the
Project itself by the Housing Successor. :

(¢)  The Housing Successor reserves the right to reasonably obtain further
information, data and commitments to ascertain the ability and capacity of the Developer to
develop the Property and/or the'Project. The Developer acknowledges that it may be requested to




make certain financial disclosures to the Housing Successor, its staff, legal counsel or other
consultants, as part of the financial due diligence investigations of the Housing Successor relating
to the potential sale of the Property and redevelopment of the Project on the Property by the
Developer and that any such disclosures may become public records. The Housing Successor shall
maintain the confidentiality of financial information of the Developer to the extent allowed by law,
as determined by the Housing Successor Legal Counsel.

® The Housing Successor shall not be deemed to be a Party to any agreement
for the acquisition of, lease of or disposition of real or personal property, the provision of financial
assistance to the Developer or development of the Project on the Property or elsewhere, until the
terms and conditions of a complete future DDA are considered and approved by both the City
Council and the Housing Successor governing body, in their respective sole and absolute
discretion, following the conclusion of one or more duly noticed public hearings, as required by
Jaw. The Developer expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Housing Successor will not be
bound by any statement, promise or representation made by Housing Successor staff or
representatives during the course of negotiations of a future DDA and that the Housing Successor
shall only be legally bound upon the approval of a complete DDA by both the City Council and
the Housing Successor Board, in their respective sole and absolute discretion, following one or
more duly noticed public hearings, as required by law.

(g)  Each Party represents that it has not engaged any broker, agent or finder in
connection with this transaction and each party agrees to hold the other party harmless from any
claim by any broker, agenda or finder retained by or claimed through such Party.

13.  Nondiscrimination. The Developer shall not discriminate against nor segregate
any person, or group of persons on account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status,
handicap, national origin or ancestry in undertaking its obligations under this Agreement.

14, Default.

(@) Failure or delay by either Party to perform any material term or provision
of this Agreement shall constitute a default under this Agreement. If the Party who is claimed to
be in default by the other Party cures, corrects or remedies the alleged default within fifteen (15)
calendar days after receipt of written notice specifying such default, such Party shall not be in
default under this Agreement. The notice and cure period provided in the immediately preceding
sentence shall not, under any circumstances, extend the Negotiation Period. If there are less than
fifteen (15) days remaining in the Negotiation Period, the cure period allowed pursuant to this
Section 14(a) shall be automatically reduced to the number of days remaining in the Negotiation
Period.

(b)  The Party claiming that a default has ocourred shall give written notice of
default to the Party claimed to be in default, specifying the alleged default, Delay in giving such
notice shall not constitute a waiver of any default nor shall it change the time of default. However,
the injured Party shall have no right to exercise any remedy for a default under this Agreement,
without first delivering written notice of the default.




(©) Any failure or delay by a Party in asserting any of its rights or remedies as
to any default shall not operate as a waiver of any default or of any rights or remedies associated
with a default,

(d)  If a default of either Party remains uncured for more than fifteen (15)
calendar days following receipt of written notice of such default, a ‘breach’ of this Agreement by
the defaulting Party shall be deemed to have occurred. In the event ofa breach of this Agreement,
the sole and exclusive remedy of the Party who is not in default shall be to terminate this
Agreement by serving written notice of termination on the Party in breach and, in the case of a
breach by the Housing Successor, the Developer shall also be entitled to receive the Liquidated
Damages Amount.

15.  Compliance with Law. The Developer acknowledges that any future DDA, if
approved by the governing body of the Housing Successor, will require the Developer (among
other things) to carry out the development of the Project in conformity with all applicable laws,
including all applicable building, planning, housing and zoning laws, environmental laws, safety
laws and federal and state labor and wage laws.

16.  Press Releases. The Developer agrees to obtain the approval of the Housing
Successor Executive Director or his or her designee or successot in function of any press releases
Developer may propose relating to the redevelopment of the Property or negotiation of a DDA
with the Housing Successor, ptior to publication.

17.  Notice. All notices required under this Agreement shall be presented in person, by
nationally recognized overnight delivery service or by facsimile and confirmed by first class
certified or registered United States Mail, with return receipt requested, to the address and/or fax
number for the Party set forth in this Section 17. Notice shall be deemed confirmed by United
States Mail effective the third (3rd) business day after deposit with the United States Postal
Service. Notice by personal service or nationally recognized overnight delivery service shall be
effective upon delivery. Either Party may change its address for receipt of notices by notifying
the other Party in writing. Delivery of notices to courtesy copy recipients shall not be required for
valid notice to a Party.

TO DEVELOPER:
The Whole Child
10155 Colima Road
Whittier, CA 90603
Attention: Constanza Pachon

Habitat for Humanity of
Greater Los Angeles

8739 Artesia Blvd.
Bellflower, CA 90706
Attention: Dartell Simien




The Richman Group of California Development
Company, LLC

420 31st Street Suite B1

Newport Beach, CA 92663

Attn: Rick Westberg

TO HOUSING City of Santa Fe Springs

SUCCESSOR: 11710 E. Telegraph Road
Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670
Attention: Wayne Morrell

18.  Warranty against Payment of Consideration for Agreement. The Developer
warrants that it has not paid or given, and will not pay or give, any third party any money ot other
consideration for obtaining this Agreement. Thitd parties, for the purposes of this Section 18, shall
not include persons to whom fees are paid for professional services, if rendered by attorneys,
financial consultants, accountants, engineers, architects and other consultants, when such fees are
considered necessary by the Developer. :

19.  Acceptance of Agreement by Developer. The Developer shall acknowledge its
acceptance of this Agreement by delivering to the Housing Successor three (3) original counterpart
executed copies of this Agreement signed by the authorized representative(s) of the Developer.

20.  Counterpart Originals, This Agreement may be executed by the Housing
Successor and the Developer in multiple counterpart originals, all of which together shall
constitute a single agreement.

21.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to benefit
any person or entity other than the Housing Successor or the Developer.

22.  Indemnity. Developer agrees to defend (with counsel approved by City), hold
harmless and indemnify the Housing Successor, City, and each of their officers, agents and
employees (the “Indemnified Parties”) from and against any and all claims, causes of action,
liabilities, damages, judgments, losses, costs or expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys’
fees) actually caused by or resulting from Developer’s acts or omissions pursuant to this
Agreement; provided that the obligation to defend does not apply to actions arising solely from
Indemnified Parties’ acts or omissions; and provided, further, that the obligation to hold harmless
applies only to the extent damages are the result of negligent acts or omissions or willful
misconduct of Developer or Developer’s agents, officers, ownets or employees. Notwithstanding
this imitation, Developer agrees to defend or pay the cost of defense of any action brought by any
third party challenging the City’s or Authority’s ability to enter into this Exclusive Negotiation
Agreement on any grounds whatsoever.




23.  Non-Liability of City Officials, No member, official, officer, employee, agent,
representative, volunteer, or consultant of the Housing Successor shall be personally liable to
Developet, or any successor in interest of Developer, in the event of any default or breach by City
or for any amount which may become due to Developer or to its successor, or on any obligations
undet the terms of this Agreement.

24, Governing Law. The Housing Successor and the Developer acknowledge and
agree that this Agreement was negotiated, entered into and is to be fully performed in the City of
Santa Fe Springs, California. The Housing Successor and the Developer agree that this Agreement
shall be governed by, interpreted under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of California, without application of such laws’ conflicts of laws principles.

25.  Waivers. No waiver of any breach of any term or condition contained in this
Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of such term or
condition, or of any other term or condition contained in this Agreement. No extension of the time
for performance of any obligation or act, no waiver of any term ot condition of this Agreement, or
any modification of this Agreement shall be enforceable against the Housing Successor or the
Developer, unless made in writing and executed by both the Housing Successor and the Developer.

26.  Construction. Headings at the beginning of each section and sub-section of this
Agreement are solely for the convenience of reference of the Housing Successor and the Developer
and are not a part of this Agreement. Whenever required by the context of this Agreement, the
singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall include the feminine and vice versa. This
Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared by one or the other of the Housing
Successor or the Developer, but rather as if both the Housing Successor and the Developer
prepared this Agreement. Unless otherwise indicated, all references to sections are to this
Agreement. All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are attached to this Agreement and
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, If the date on which the Housing Successor
or the Developer is required to take any action pursuant to the terms of this Agreement is not a
business day of the Housing Successor, the action shall be taken on the next succeeding business
day of the City.

24.  Attorneys’ Fees. If either Party hereto files any action or brings any action or
proceeding against the other arising out of this Agreement, then the prevailing Party shall be
entitled to recover as an element of its costs of suit, and not as damages, its reasonable attorneys’
fees and costs as fixed by the court, in such action or proceeding or in a separate action or
proceeding brought to recover such attorneys’ fees and costs. For the purposes hereof the words
‘reasonable attorneys’ fees® mean and include, in the case of Housing Successor, salaries and
expenses of the lawyers employed by Housing Successor (allocated on an hourly basis) who may
provide legal services to Housing Successot in connection with the representation of the Housing
Successor in any such mattet.

95, Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties, integrates all of the terms and conditions mentioned herein or incidental
hereto, and supersedes all negotiations or previous agreements between the Parties or their
predecessors in interest with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof.

10




[Signatures on following page]

11




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Housing Successor and the Developer have executed this
Negotiation Agreement on the dates indicated next to each of the signatures of their authorized

representatives, as appear below.

Dated: 4(12/[0/

Dated:_g// 30// / ?

ATTEST:

By: %'

et Mavtin\g}:, City Clerk

03-21-2019 - Final ENA Habitat

DEVELOPER:

THE WHOLE CHILD,

il

Constanza Paohon CEO

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER LOS
ANGELES

s //Z

Erin Rank, President & CEO

THE RICHM GROUP OF CALIFORNIA
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC

By: (\ )

Rick Westberg, Executive VP

HOUSING SUCCESSOR:
HOUSING SUCCESSOR TO THE COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF SANTA FE\SPRIN

By: ( k

Juanita Trujillo, Mayor

12




APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: JWAB
¢/

Housing  Successor Legal
Counsel

13




EXHIBIT ‘A’
TO
NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT

Property Legal Description

AP.N. 8011-012-912

LOT 13 OF TRACT 5309, IN THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, COUNTY OF LOS
ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 64 PAGES 398
AND 39 OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY.

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF SAID LOT 13 DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 13’ THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE
OF SAID LOT, NORTH 89° 55 EAST 234.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 405,55 FEET TO A POINT IN THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT, DISTANT NORTH 89° 55" EAST 234.63 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID LOT, THENCE SOUTH 89° 55" WEST 234.63 FEET TO SAID NORTHWEST CORNER;
THENCE SOUTH 405.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

ALSO EXCEPT ALL OIL, GAS OR OTHER HYDROCARBON SUBSTANCES IN SAID LAND AND ALSO
EXCEPTING AND RESERVING ALL INTEREST UNDER THE COMMUNITY OIL AND GAS LEASE KNOWN
AS “GAULDIN COMMUNITY OIL LEASE” DATED SEPTEMBER 7, 1951, EXECUTED IN VARIOUS
COUNTERPARTS IN FAVOR OF T. & T, 011 COMPANY, A PARTNERSHIP, COMPOSED OF WALTER N.
THOMPSON, HORACE W. THOMPSON AND JACK H. THOMPSON, PARTNERS, AS LESSEE; A
COUNTERPART “ORIGINAL” THEREOF EXECUTED BY VERONICA CONDON NATHHORST, ET AL,
WAS REGISTERED ON NOVEMBER 26, 1961 AS DOCUMENT NO. 31139-T AND RECORDED MARCH 12,
1952 AS INSTRUMENT NO 1615 IN BOOK 38460 PAGE 34 OFFICIAL RECORDS, AS EXCEPTED AND
RESERVED BY VERONICA CONDON NATHHORST, A WIDOW B DEED RECORDED MARCH 11, 1959,

AP.N, 8011-011-912
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles,
state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 1 of Parcel Map NO. 25238, Filed in book 288 pages 65 and 66 of Parcel Maps, in the
office of the county recorder of said county.

AP.N, 8011-011-906
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles,
state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 2 of Parcel Map NO. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in the
office of the county recorder of said county.

AP.N. 8011-011-907
The land referred to herein is situated in the city of Santa Fe Springs, county of Los Angeles,
state of California, and is described as follows:

Parcel 3 of Parcel Map NO. 24115, Filed in book 266 pages 94 and 95 of Parcel Maps, in the
office of the county recorder of said county.

03-21-2019 - Final ENA Habitat EXHIBIT A




EXHIBIT ‘B’
TO
NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT

Project Description

Developer is proposing to build a multi-use, affordable housing development.

All work described above shall be performed in accordance with all applicable laws.

03-21-2019 - Final ENA Habitat EXHIBIT B




EXHIBIT °C’

Exclusive Negotiating Agreement Timeline

Within 90 Days of Effective Date of ENA {April 30, 2013) of ENA

Title Report. Housing Successor to provide preliminary title report on property; Developer to commence
physical due diligence on Property.

Preliminary Development Concept Package. Developer shall submit to the Housing Stuccessor a “Preliminary
Development Concept Package,” consisting of the following:

a. a preliminary development proposal generally describing the Project for the site subject to Housing
Successor review and approval.

b. an initial estimate of development costs, including construction and non-construction costs, such as

the proposed purchase price for land;

a preliminary description of the proposed method of financing;

a proposed construction and operating pro forma which identifies ali sources and uses of funds;

e. submittal of preliminary design(s) (including a scaled site plan indicating building and parking layout)
for the purpose of demonstrating compliance with the design requirements of the Gity of Santa Fe
Springs and to assist the Housing Successor in conducting a review under the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"); and

. evidence reasonably acceptable to the Housing Successor that the Developer have the significant
financial resources necessary for development.

ao

Housing Successor staff may solicit proposals and select independent financial or design consulting firms to
verify and further analyze the Preliminary Development Concept Package at the Housing Successor's sole
expense.

Within 180 Days of Effective Date of ENA as such time may he extended by the Parties

Preliminary Agency Evaluation, Within thirty (90) days of the date of receipt of the Preliminary Development
Concept Package, the Housing Successor will provide its evaluation (“Preliminary Housing Successor
Evaluation”) to the Developer of the Preliminary Development Concept Package. Such evaluation will
include:

a. The Housing Successor's evaluation of items addressed in the Preliminary Development
Concept Package. The Preliminary Housing Successor Evaluation shall indicate Housing
Successor's preliminary determinations as to the appropriate level of review under CEQA and
local planning approvals (e.g., DPA, CUP, TPM, TTM, MOD, etc).

b. The Housing Successor will identify the amount of local City of Santa Fe Springs funding sources
for infrastructure and affordable housing development

Draft Disposition & Development Agreement (“DDA”). The Housing Successor will provide the Developer
with a 1%t draft of the DDA and exhibits.

L

03-21-2019 - Final ENA Habitat EXHIBIT C




Within 300 Days of Effective Date of ENA as such time may be extended by the Parties

Finalize DDA. Within one hundred and twenty (120) days of receipt of the 1% draft of the DDA, Developer
and Housing Successor will conclude negotiations on a final form of DDA. Itis expected that this negotiation
wili require multiple rounds of review and comment by Developer and Housing Successor, and will also be
dependent on identifying and pursuing other funding sources outside of the City of Santa Fe Springs.

Outreach. During the finalization of the DDA, in coordination with City staff and the Housing Successor,
the Developer will perform necessary community outreach to garner support for the development and the
DDA.

Procurement of Other Funding Sources. Developer will work with the Housing Successor and other
affordable housing agencies at the County, State and Federal levels, with industry advocates, to identify,
plan for, apply for and secure other funding sources.

Within 365 Days of Effective Date of ENA as such time may be extended by the Parties

{mpact of and timing of Disparate Funding Sources, The above timing commitments and subsequent
DDA will be impacted by the identification, pursuit and attainment of funding for the agreed upon affordable
housing development. The remainder of the ENA period (365 days of effective date of ENA plus any
mutually agreed upon extensions, if any) allows further time for the Housing Successor and Developer to
gain these commitments to ensure a feasible execution.

03-21-2019 - Final ENA Habitat EXHIBITC




EXHIBIT ‘D’
TO
NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT

Right of Entry Agreement

[To Be Attached Behind This Cover Page]




EXHIBIT “D”
RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT
(Lakeland Road and Laurel Avenue Affordable Residential Project)

This Right of Entry Agreement (“Agteement”) is made and entered into this 12" day of
April, 2019, by and between the HOUSING SUCCESSOR TO THE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS (“Housing
Successor”) and THE WHOLE CHILD, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF GREATER LOS ANGELES, a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation, and THE RICHMAN GROUP OF CALIFORNIA DEVELOPMENT COMPANY,
LLC (jointly known as “Developer”) and its employees, officers, members, agents, representatives,
invitees, affiliates, and its contractors, including their consultants, subcontractors and suppliers
(collectively, the “Affiliated Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Housing Successor owns certain real property (“Property™) located at
[akeland Road and Laurel Avenue, in the City of Santa Fe Springs (“City”) comprised of four
distinct parcels of land and more specifically described in the legal description attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit ‘A’ (‘Property’) and incorporated into this Agreement by this reference; and

WHEREAS, The Developer has proposed the redevelopment of the Property as an
affordable mixed-use housing development (“Project”); and

WHEREAS, The Developer and its Affiliated Parties have requested access to the Property
that they may conduct such inspections, tests, surveys, and other analyses (“Inspections”) as
Developer deems reasonably necessary to determine the condition of the Property or the feasibility
of designing, developing, constructing, leasing and financing the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Housing Successor desires to provide access to Property the Developer and
its Affiliated Parties for the purposes of Inspections,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth and the
mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant. Housing Successor, the owner of the Property, hereby grants a right of entry
(“Right of Entry) to the Developer and its Affiliated Parties to enter upon the Property. Use of the
Property is for the putpose of conducting Inspections.

2, Permitted Activities. The Developer and the Affiliated Parties shall use the Right of
Entry to perform the aforementioned Inspections.

3. Term. This Agreement will be effective on the date first written above, The
Developer and its Affiliated Parties shall have the Right of Entry for a period of 52 weeks
commencing on April 30, 2019 to April 30, 2020 unless this Agreement is earlier terminated as set
forth in this Agreement.




4, Condition of Property. During the term of this Agreement, the Developer and its
Affiliated Parties shall not cause physical damage, create dangerous conditions on the property or
otherwise cause any other damage to the Property and shall take all reasonable steps to maintain the
Property in an orderly and appealing manner. In addition, the Developer and its Affiliated Patties
shall intexfere with the peaceful enjoyment of the Property by the current tenant of the Property.

5. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by City if the City determines
using its sole discretion that the Developer and its Affiliated Parties’ use of the Property is in
violation of this Agreement, creates any kind of health and safety hazard, or would impose any
liability upon the City.

6. Access to the Property. The City shall make a reasonable effort to keep access to
the Property open to the Developer and its Affiliated Parties at all times and shall not unreasonably
interfere with the Developer and its Affiliated Parties’ access to the Property. The Developer and its
Affiliated Parties shall not interfere with the City’s access to or use of the Property, including the
current tenant’s use of the property.

7. Indemnification. Except as to sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City, the
Developer and its Affiliated Parties agree to indemnify, defend, and hold the City and its officers
and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, liability, cost or expense,
including attorney’s fees and costs, which arises out of or is in any way connected with the
performance of Inspections or use of the Property under this Agreement by the Developer and its
Affiliated Parties, any of the Developer and its Affiliated Parties. The Developer and its Affiliated
Parties shall also be responsible for any attorneys” fees and costs the Housing Successor may incur
in the event the Housing Successor has to file any action in connection with this Agreement,

8. Workers' Compensation Insurance. By executing this Agreement, the Developer
and its Affiliated Parties certify that they are aware of and will comply with Section 3700 of the
Labor Code of the State of California requiring every employer to be insured against liability for
workers’ compensation, or to undertake self-insurance before commencing any of the work. The
Developer and its Affiliated Parties shall carry the insurance or provide for self-insurance required
by California law to protect Housing Successor from claims under the Workers’ Compensation Act.
Prior to Housing Successor's execution of this Agreement, the Developer and its Affiliated Parties
shall file with Housing Successor either a certificate of insurance showing that such insurance is in
effect, or that they are self-insured for such coverage. Any certificate filed with Housing Successor
shall provide that Housing Successor will be given thirty (30) days prior written notice before
modification or cancellation thereof.

0. General Liability Insurance. Prior to the Housing Successor’s execution of this
Agreement, Developer and its Affiliated Parties shall provide proof of general liability insurance as
required to insure the Housing Successor against damages for personal injury, including accidental
death, as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise from or which may concern
operations by anyone directly or indirectly employed by, connected with, or acting for ot on behalf
of the Developer and its Affiliated Parties. The Housing Successor, and its officers, employees and
agents, shall be named as additional insureds under the Developer’s and its Affiliated Parties’

2




insurance policies. Said policies shall be in the usual form of commercial general liability insurance
policies, but shall include the following provisions:

It is agreed that the Housing Successor, the City and its officers, employees and
agents are added as additional insureds under this policy, solely for the inspections
done by and on behalf of the named insured.

All liability insurance shall be issued by insurance companies authorized to transact liability
insurance business in the State of California with a policy holder’s rating of A or higher and a
Financial Class of VII or higher.

General liability insurance policies shall cover both bodily injury (including death) and
property damage (including, but not limited to, premises operations Hability, products-completed
operations liability, independent contractor’s liability, personal injury liability, and contractual
liability) in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and a general aggregate limit in the
amount of not less than $2,000,000, unless otherwise approved or reduced by the Housing
Successor.

These minimum amounts of coverage shall not constitute any limitation or cap on the
Developer’s and its Affiliated Parties’ indemnification obligations under Section 7 hereof.

Any policies shall not be canceled unless thirty (30) days prior written notification of
intended cancellation has been given to the Housing Successor by certified or registered mail,
postage prepaid. Any policies shall include an endorsement stating that any applicable insurance
coverage maintained by the Housing Successor shall be excess in relation to the Developer and its
Affiliated parties insurance policies.

10.  Venue and Attorneys' Fees. Any action at law or in equity brought by any of the
parties hereto for the purpose of enforcing a right or rights provided for by this Agreement shall be
tried in a court of competent jurisdiction in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, and the
parties hereby waive all provisions of law providing for a change of venue in such proceedings to
any other county. In the event any party hereto shall bring suit to enforce any term of this
Agreement or to recover any damage for and on account of the breach of any term or condition of
this Agreement, it is mutually agreed that the prevailing party in such action shall recover all costs
thereof, including reasonable attorneys' fees, to be set by the court in such action.

11.  Compliance with Law. The Developer’s and its Affiliated Parties’ performance
under this Agreement shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, regulations, and
ordinances.

12. Notices. Service of any notices, bills, invoices or other documents required or
permitted under this Agresment shall be sufficient if sent by one party to the other by United States
mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:




Housing Successor The Developer and its Affiliated Parties

Director of Planning

Housing Successor of Santa Fe Springs

11710 E. Telegraph Rd.

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

(562) 868-0511 :

13.  Assignment. It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement is personal to
both parties and may not be assigned or transferred in any way, Any transfer shall be void and of
no effect.

14,  Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement each represent and warrant
that they have the legal power, right and actual authority to bind their respective entities to the terms
and conditions hereof and thereof.

15. Severability. Each provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole
and in part, in this Agreement shall be considered severable. In the event any provision, term,
condition, covenant, and/or restriction, in whole and/or in part, in this Agreement is declared
invalid, unconstitutional, or void for any reason, such provision or part thereof shall be severed
from this Agreement and shall not affect any other provision, term, condition, covenant, and/or
restriction, of this Agreement and the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and
effect. ‘

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on
the date and year first written above.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR DEVELOPER
@F SANTA FE SRRINGS
% WHOLE C?LD Op
By: | ‘{/‘7'}[5\ By: i‘éﬁ Mé/axc //Q) 4//2//1(
Slgnature Date Sf%gﬁature 4 Date
HAB{T;@ OF /H%MANITY
By o I YA 1t
Signature Date

THE RICHM ROUP OF CALIFORNIA
DEVEL NTCOMPNAY, LLC

By: / 4/M i
ngpé\cuf%» Date

Approved as to Form:

Dt

vy M. Té&ﬁ Legal Counsel
Housing Successor Attorney




FOR ITEM NO. 6
PLEASE SEE ITEM NO. 7A




ITEM NO.7A

City Council Meeting November 12, 2020

A CONSENT AGENDA
f Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Reqular City Council Meetings

RECOMMENDATION(S)
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

BACKGROUND
Staff has prepared minutes for the following meeting:
e October 8, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Staff hereby submits the minutes for Council’s approval.

TR Y.

Raymond R. Cruz
City Manager

Attachments:
1. October 8, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Report Submitted By: Janet Martinez Date of Report: November 5, 2020
City Clerk



APPROVED:

CITY COUNCIL
October 8, 2020

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Rounds called the meeting to order via teleconference at 6:00 p.m.

2, ROLL CALL
Members present: Council Members/Directors: Mora, Rodriguez, Zamora, Mayor Pro
Tem/Vice Chair Mora, and Mayor/Chair Rounds.

Members absent: None

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The following individuals spoke during Public Comment: Ashley Owen.

HOUSING SUCCESSOR

4, CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes of the September 10, 2020 Housing Successor (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Trujillo,
to approve the minutes as submitted, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

SUCCESSOR AGENCY

5. CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes of the September 10, 2020 Successor Agency (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

It was moved by Council Member Rodriguez, seconded by Council Member
Zamora, to approve the minutes as submitted, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds

Nayes: None

Absent: None



Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

CITY COUNCIL
6. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Minutes of the September 10, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve the minutes as submitted.

b. General Motion to Waive Full Reading and Read Ordinance by Title Only Pursuant
to California Government Code Section 36934 (City Clerk)
Recommendation:
e Approve a general motion to waive full reading and read Ordinance titles
only, pursuant to California Government Code Section 36934.

It was moved by Mayor Pro Tem Mora, seconded by Council Member Truijillo, to
approve the consent agenda, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

PUBLIC HEARING/ORDINANCE FOR INTRODUCTION
7. Categorically Exempt — CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) (Planning)
Ordinance No. 1114: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Santa Fe Springs,
Amending Chapter 98 (Signs) of Title 9 (General Regulations) of the Santa Fe Springs
Municipal Code to Regulate Signs on Public Property (City of Santa Fe Springs)
Recommendation:
e Waive further reading and introduce Ordinance No. 1114.

Mayor Rounds opened the Public Hearing at: 6:05 p.m.
There were no speakers present to speak on ltem No. 7.

Mayor Rounds closed the public Hearing at: 6:05 p.m.

It was moved by Council Member Rodriguez, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mora,
waive further reading and introduce Ordinance No. 1114, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

PUBLIC HEARING
8. Resolution No. 9697 — Authorizing the Allocation of the Community Development Block
Grant Corona Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act (CDBG-CV) Funds For
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and Authorizing the Expenditure Plan for the CARES Act Funds
From the State of California (Planning)
Recommendation:
e Open the Public Hearing and receive any comments from the public
regarding this matter and thereafter, close the Public Hearing; and
e Approve the FY 2020-2021 CDBG-CYV allocation as recommended; and
Page 2




Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

. ’Adcy)b”’twl'\”ésblution No. 9697, authorize the allocation of fhe CDBG-CV
funds for FY2020-2021; and authorizing the Expenditure Plan for the
CARES Act Funds from the State.

Planning Director, Wayne Morrell made a brief presentation on Item No. 8.

Mayor Rounds opened the Public Hearing at 6:15 p.m.

There were no speakers wishing to speak on ltem No. 8.

Mayor Rounds closed the Public Hearing at 6:15 p.m.
It was moved by Council Member Zamora, seconded by Council Member Trujillo,
Approve the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 CDBG-CV allocation as recommended; and
adopt Resolution No. 9697, authorize the allocation of the CDBG-CV funds for

Fiscal Year 2020-2021; and authorizing the Expenditure Plan for the CARES Act
Funds from the State, by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

NEW BUSINESS
9. Authorize the Purchase of a 100’ Aerial Platform Apparatus from South Coast Equipment
Inc., and Related Vehicle Communication Equipment and Financing (Fire)
Recommendation:

e Authorize the purchase of a Pierce Arrow XT 100’ Legacy Platform Aerial
apparatus from South Coast Equipment Inc., for an amount not to
exceed $1,509,809.70;

e Authorize the purchase of communication equipment for the apparatus
from Motorola Solutions Inc. for an amount not to exceed $16,044.16;

e Authorize the purchase of a Mobile Data Computer (MDC) from
DuraTech USA, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $4,767.25;

¢ Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to enter into a master
lease financing agreement with Public Sector Capital LLC for a 7-year
term at an interest rate of 1.74% and annual payments that will provide
for complete ownership of the apparatus at the end of the 7-year lease.

It was moved by Council Member Rodriguez, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mora
to authorize the purchase of a Pierce Arrow XT 100’ Legacy Platform Aerial
apparatus from South Coast Equipment, Inc. for an amount not to exceed
$1,509,809.70; authorize the purchase of communication equipment for the
apparatus from Motorola Solutions, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $16,044.16;
Authorize the purchase of a Mobile Data Computer (MDC) from DuraTech USA,
Inc. for an amount not to exceed $4,767.25; authorize the Director of Purchasing
Services to enter into a master lease financing agreement with Public Sector
Capital LLC for a 7-year term at an interest rate of 1.74% and annual payments
that will provide for complete ownership of the apparatus at the end of the 7-year
lease, by the following vote:

Page 3




Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

10.

11.

Ayes: Rodrigue”z, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

Authorize the Purchase of Ten (10) Contactless Temperature Screening Kiosks from IBE
Digital by Piggybacking off Sourcewell Contract #083116-KON (Finance)
Recommendation:
o Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to purchase ten (10) new
contactless temperature screening kiosks form IBE Digital utilizing
Sourcewell cooperative contract #083116-KON; and
¢ Authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to issue a purchase order
to IBE Digital in the amount of $31,875 for this purchase; and
e Appropriate $31,875 from General Fund reserves to account 10109000-
521000 (non-recurring)

It was moved by Council Member Trujillo, seconded by Council Member
Rodriguez, to authorize the Director of Purchasing Services to purchase ten (1C;
new contactless temperature screening kiosks form IBE Digital utilizing Sourcewell
cooperative contract #08116-KON; and authorize the Director of Purchasing
Services to issue a purchase order to IBE Digital in the amount of $31,875 for this
purchase; and appropriate $31,875 from General Fund reserves to account
10109000-521000 (non-recurring), by the following vote:

Ayes: Rodriguez, Trujillo, Zamora, Mora, Rounds
Nayes: None
Absent: None

CITY MANAGER AND EXECUTIVE TEAM REPORTS

City Manager, Raymond R. Cruz spoke about the Los Angeles County Public Health
Department’s restrictions for public and private operations. He anticipated that City
playgrounds would be open by the end of next week. He also spoke about attending the
League of California Cities virtual sessions.

Director of Public Works, Noe Negrete spoke about “Paint the Town Pink Month” for
breast cancer awareness month; he also provided an update on two street improvement
projects on Lakeland Road and Meyer Road. Lastly, he announced that Caltrans will be
closing the Florence Ave bridge tonight to switch the traffic.

Director of Planning, Wayne Morrell spoke about National Community Planning Month;
he also spoke about the photo contest. Lastly, he spoke about the City’s General Plan
update.

Director of Police Services, Dino Torres spoke about the 25™ year anniversary of the law
enforcement contract between the Whittier Police Department and the City of Santa Fe
Springs.

Fire Chief, Brent Hayward provided an update on the current fires. He also provided a
brief report on the COVID-19 cases.

Director of Finance, Travis Hickey provided an update on the City’s sales tax and the
economic impact due to the pandemic.

Page 4




Minutes of the October 8, 2020 Housing Successor, Successor Agency, and City Council Meetings

12.

13.

14.

Director of Community Services, Maricela Balderas spoke about the City’s virtual events
such as the Halloween Wheel of Fortune; Pumpkin Decoration Contest; and announced
that further information on the virtual events are on the City’s website.

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS
No appointments were made.

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Rodriguez wished a Happy Anniversary to the City and to Whittier Police
for the 25 years of partnership. She also thanked all the staff who continue to work
through the pandemic. Lastly, she thanked everyone for the kind words and wishes
related to the passing of her mother.

Councilmember Trujillo acknowledged the drive-in movie events the City hosted and
expressed the interest in having the City continue hosting such events. She also thanked
the Fire Department and Whittier Police Department for working in raising money for
Breast Cancer Awareness Month.

Councilmember Zamora thanked staff for all their help and hard work.

Mayor Pro Tem Mora thanked staff for all their help and expressed his gratitude for
everyone's support and how everyone has managed to work through the challenges that
the pandemic has brought forward.

Mayor Rounds spoke about the 25" anniversary of the Whittier Police Department
partnership and expressed his lament of not having a Red Ribbon Parade this year. He
also thanked staff for bringing awareness to Breast Cancer Awareness Month.

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Rounds adjourned the meeting at 6:53 p.m. in memory of Carolyn Heartly Scissel
and Patsy Jean Summer.

William K. Rounds, Mayor
ATTEST:

Janet Martinez, City Clerk Date

Page 5




| ITEM NO. 7B
<&z, City of Santa Fe Springs

City Council Meeting November 12, 2020

A CONSENT AGENDA
Community Facilities District No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) - Annual Special Tax
Levy Report for Fiscal Year 2019-20

RECOMMENDATION ,
e Receive and file the Special Tax Levy Annual Report for Community Facilities
District 2002-1 for Fiscal Year 2019-20.

BACKGROUND

The Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 requires the preparation of an annual
special tax levy report for each Community Facilities District (CFD). The report must
detail the special taxes that are levied within a CFD and any construction activity at the
time the report is prepared. The methodology and amounts to be levied were
established at the time the CFD was formed.

FISCAL IMPACT

Repayment of the bonds and payment of services are secured by the special taxes
levied on all property within the CFD, other than those properties that are exempt as
provided in the respective rate and method of apportionment. Annual administrative
expenses are also funded through the annual special tax levy.

ayya

Raymond R. Cruz
City Manager

Attachment:
Attachment No. 1:  Special Tax Levy Annual Report
for CFD 2002-1 for Fiscal Year 2019-20

Report Submitted By: Noe Negrete */ ~Date of Report: November 5, 2020
Director of Public Works



CITY OF
SANTA FE SPRINGS

ICITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
ANNUAL REPORT FOR SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2002-1
(BLOOMFIELD-LAKELAND)
FISCAL YEAR 2019-20
LOS ANGELES COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

October 28, 2020

PREPARED BY

|- :
T Harris & Associates



City of Santa Fe Springs Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page i

CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2002-1
(Bloomfield-Lakeland)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INEEOAUCTION ....evveititi ettt ettt st sat e e sh e e e ebe e et b s e b sk e se s sh s b e s R b e eb s e e beoresrneats e et s atbeasesreens 1
L. Facilities and Services Financed by the District.........ccccovcvviiiciiiiinin v, 1
1L IMPIOVEIMENT ATBA  .oocviiniiiiieiieeet ettt be s e e st bt e bb s are e ra e raenrre s 2
III. Special TaxX fOr SEIVICES ......covciiviiriiiiiiieiicn e b 3
Iv. AdMINISIIATIVE FEES Luiiiiiiiieitiierte st e e s 3
V. Sources and ODIIZALIONS .....oocverireeirerree et b st r e ere e 4
VI. Special Tax ROIL.....ccociiiireiiiciiicini i bbb 4
APPENDIX
Exhibit A Boundary Map
Exhibit B Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax
Exhibit C Payment Agreement
Exhibit D Amended Debt Service Schedule
Exhibit E Special Tax Roll

Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page 1

INTRODUCTION

The City Council of the City of Santa Fe Springs established Community Facilities District No. 2002-
1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) (hereinafter referred to as “CFD”, “CFD No. 2002-1”, or the “District”) for
the purpose of constructing, maintaining and the administration of certain public improvements.

A map showing the boundaries of CFD No. 2002-1 is included in the Appendix of this report as Exhibit
A. The District established a Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax (RMA) and a Payment
Agreement as shown in the Appendix as Exhibits B and C. In compliance with the proceedings
governing the formation of CFD No. 2002-1, the special tax has been levied on each taxable parcel within
the District according to the provisions of the RMA.

The City of Santa Fe Springs granted the Development Plan Approval (“DPA No. 737-739”) authorizing
the principle sum of $800,000 on March 14, 2002. The Payment Agreement that was provided for in the
DPA established a repayment period that was to commence the 1st day of the month following the Permit
Anniversary Date and continue until the Payment Sum has been paid in full (approximately 175 months
or 14.5 years).

The payments should have commenced in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and continued until Fiscal Year 2016-17
(established by the Permit Issue dates according to the RMA). As of the close of Fiscal Year 2009-10,
no payments had been received from the property owners in CFD 2002-1.

It was determined by the City Finance Department and legal counsel to amend the RMA with a revised
Payment Schedule to begin collecting payments commencing in Fiscal Year 2011-12. The Amended
and Restated RMA was approved in a property owner special election on July 14, 2011.

The Special Taxes as hereinafter defined shall be levied on all Assessor’s Parcels in CFD No. 2002-1
and collected each Fiscal Year commencing in Fiscal Year 2011-12, in the amounts determined as
described below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2002-1, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

The City agreed to waive the interest and maintenance cost associated with the District for the years prior
to Fiscal Year 2011-12. The annual street maintenance will continue as originally established in the RMA
and will also be levied on the county tax bill as long as the City provides for the maintenance of streets
within the District.

L FACILITIES AND SERVICES FINANCED BY THE DISTRICT

The public facilities financed by CFD No. 2002-1 include all or a portion of design, construction,
indirect costs (fees) and administration relating to the following improvements: the grading and
construction of streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, street lighting, storm drainage, water, sewer and
utility improvements (both on and off-site) to serve the area within the boundaries of CFD No. 2002-
1, together with appurtenances and appurtenant work. All improvements are complete.

In addition to the improvements above, the CFD is anticipated to cover the on-going costs for
maintenance services and administration of those improvements.

EN . .
7 Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

October 28,2020
Page 2

Development Status
Construction was completed for the whole project on May 16, 2003. The total Assessed Value and
number of properties sold since 2003 are shown in the following table.

TABLE 1
PARCEL STATUS
Total Properties
Total Parcels  Assessed Value Sold Since
Development Status 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19

Developed Non-Residential Property 3 § 43,731,740 0
Undeveloped Non-Residential Property _ 0 $ - 0
Total 3 $ 43,731,740 0

IL. IMPROVEMENT AREA
The RMA for Services establishes the apportionment of Special Taxes for Capital Improvements.

Each Fiscal Year, each developed parcel of land within the Special Tax for Services area shall be
subject to Special Taxes in accordance with the RMA.

The Special Tax amount attributed to each parcel is apportioned by the relative square footage of the
building on each property. As of the date the District was amended and Restated in July 2011, all the

development was complete and the annualized tax schedule commenced for each property according
to the revised payment schedule. The following table represents the annualized tax schedule.

TABLE 2

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

_Amortized ;

, ‘ ~ Amortized Annual

Address | Total Obligation | Annual Expense Exp./SF

11020 Bloomfield 84,651 $148,410.28 $15,032.03 $0.1776

11130 Bloomfield 240,252 $421,210.24 $42,663.12 $0.1776

11320 Bloomfield 131,405 $230,379.48 $23,334.45 $0.1776
Total 456,308 $800,000.00 $81,029.60

Note: figures may be off slightly due to rounding.

EN . :
] Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

October 28, 2020
Page 3

III. SPECIAL TAX FOR SERVICES
The RMA for Services establishes the apportionment of Street Maintenance Services.

Each Fiscal Year, each developed parcel of land within the Special Tax for Services area shall be
subject to their proportional share of the Street Maintenance Services based on the relative square
footage of the building on each property in accordance with the amended RMA. The annual Street
Maintenance Service for Fiscal Year 2019-20 was $6,305.94, which included a CPI increase of 2.7%
over Fiscal Year 2018-19.

The following table represents the proportional spread of maintenance services tax and administrative
fees for Fiscal Year 2019-20.

TABLE 3
STREET MAINTENANCE
- ; ~ Annual ~ Annual
Address Bidg SF Expense Exp./SE

11020 Bloomfield 84,651 $1,169.83 $0.01382
11130 Bloomfield 240,252 $3,320.16 $0.01382
11320 Bloomfield 131,405 $1,815.95 $0.01382

Total 456,308 $6,305.94

Note: figures may be off slightly due to rounding.

IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Each Fiscal Year, each developed parcel of land within the Special Tax for Services area shall be
subject to their proportional share of the Administrative Fees based on the relative square footage of
the building on each property in accordance with the amended RMA. The annual Administrative Fee
was $7,590.49, which included a CPI increase of 2.7% over Fiscal Year 2018-19.

The following table represents the proportional spread of the administrative fees for Fiscal Year 2019-
20.
TABLE 4

ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION FEE

: {  Annual Annual
_ Address Administration | Exp./SF
11020 Bloomfield 84,651 $1,408.13 $0.01663
11130 Bloomfield 240,252 $3,996.49 $0.01663
11320 Bloomfield 131,405 $2,185.87 $0.01663
Total 456,308 $7,590.49

Note: figures may be off slightly due to rounding.

Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report

October 28,2020

Page 4

V. SOURCES AND OBLIGATIONS

A statement showing the Sources and Obligations of special tax funds for CFD No. 2002-1 for Fiscal
Year 2019-20 is presented in Table 5. The Special Tax Requirement for Fiscal Year 2019-20 was

determined as specified in the adopted RMA of the Special Tax.

TABLE 5

SOURCES AND OBLIGATIONS

SOURCES
Annual Special Tax Roll
Developed Property
Undeveloped Property
Subtotal

TOTAL SPECIAL TAXES FROM ALL SOURCES

OBLIGATIONS
Debt Service
Special Tax for Maintenance Services

Administration and Incidentals
2019 Fund Balance (Reserve)

Subtotal
Surplus/Shortage to District

TOTAL OBLIGATIONS FOR SPECIAL TAXES

VI. SPECIAL TAX ROLL

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2018-19 2019-20
Amount Amount
$94,560.69 $94,926.03

$0.00 $0.00
$94,560.69 $94,926.03
$94,560.69 $94,926.03
$81,029.60 $81,029.60
$6,140.16 $6,305.94
$7,390.93 $7,590.48
$0.00 $0.00
$94,560.69 $94,926.03
$0.00 $0.00
$94,560.69 $94,926.03

The Special Tax Roll lists the special tax levy on each parcel within the boundaries of CFD No. 2002-
1 for Fiscal Year 2019-20. A copy of the Special Tax Roll is included in the Appendix of this report

as Exhibit E.

Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs Fiscal Year 2019-20 Annual Report October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

EXHIBIT A

Boundary Map

1] s :
7] Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT A

CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

October 28, 2020
Page A-1
Boundary Map

SO0 L8 A 13

SHEET 1 OF 2%‘ HEETS |
PROPOSED BOUNDARIES OF:

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 20021
(BLOOMFIELD ~ LAKELAND)
"CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

FLED I THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK, CITY OF SANIA FE SPRNGS, FILED rms DAY OF 2002 AT THE. HOUR oF
NS BEIL CAY OF ey, 2002 —_ M, N BOOR o OF orasszss
cowmrr 7 74 ow.mts OISTRICTS AT PAGE . I THE OFFKCE

b . ms cowm' RECORDER il THE COUNIY OF LOS ,woazs STATE OF

V2
[+1
COUNTY RECORLER,
. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

1 KEREBY CERTFY THAT THE BITHEN YAP SHOWNG PROFPOSED BOUNDATIES
COMMUISTY FACRITES CSTRICT WO, 2002~1 (BLOOUFTLD~LAKELAND,

THERECF, Hi
2002, BY 1S RESOLUTICW HO.

m&ﬁgfﬂ.‘w
o Clm(/

swm FE SPRINGS, AT A MEETING THER!
([T 4 a—

6790

0 100 2% 400 hid
COMMUNITY FACILITIES Sk Tu200f
DISTRICT 2002-01
| L / BOUNDARY LINE
: 85 L.AKEI_.AND " ROAD
. [ | ; N
9 » 7 @O 3 %j %]
Ex 1] ' ,zfo/\ L i 2 2
Q?w D N gj E
“g% Zh \AO L lﬂ / < ‘ g
ey |4 W N
g2 < & % 55
EED (‘J(/ O1lw
8a& b & 2 L Wi E
o |7 255
y A E -%E% J S —
Lt N % gag
.A P /
. X 2] % %
o 2 0 ¥
W 8 0 & N
oy IR 2 2
S r'y r'y lu
9) K COMMUNITY FACILITIES 8 g %
0 DISTRICT 2602-01 S, UNE N 1/2, NW 1/4 'y 0
N BOUNDARY UNE SEC. 8, T. 3 S. R. 11 W, 0
8 S. B M
NOTE: LECeno:,
FOR ASSESSMENT PARCEL INDICATES COMMUNITY nw/(mes
DETAILS SEE SHEET 2 W= ISIRICT 2002~1 GOUNOARY
HOIE:

RIGHTS ~OF - WAY AND EASF‘IIMS 70 BE ACQUIRED FOR THE

B
SHAEL WOT

IS ASSESSMENT D«smcr

EE SUBKCT T0 M OF ASSESSUENTS L
.ON ASSESSUENY PARCELS SHOWN ON THIS DMGRMI

ﬂfmﬂﬁ’-‘é’ 1S _HEREBY MADE TO THME MAPS OF RECORD M THE

OFFICE OF THE ASSESSUR-OF COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FUR
A DETARLED DESCRIPTION OF THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF ANY
SHALL GGV%J’ FOR ALL

PARCELS SHOWN HEREIN, WHICH MAPS
DETALS CONCERNRIG THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS

Harris & Associates..



City of Santa Fe Springs

CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

EXHIBIT A

Boundary Map

October 28,2020
Page A-2

A it : : SHE.E‘; :i’-OF‘z. sH‘éErs.
2 PROPOSED BOUNDAHlES OF. :
COMMUNH Y F'ACIL.lTIES DISTHlCT 2002—1
] (BLOOMF’lELD LAKELAND)
CITY OF SANTA FE SPRINGS, COUNTY -OF. LOS ANGELES, STATE OF ' CALIFORNIA. -
L-AKELnﬂND N BIA1s W . 2658.06" T ROAD '
9[ € un:ifs'w 95' kl P 1 S . )
Ay vﬁ/gi\\m&"&/ HLTATRY
o i APN 8026-001-042 o ! ) ‘
] 7 : i

- L. 5.47 ACRES 4 -89 1 LEGEND: ; [u
% 14 @ ,bO 2 ' ll — AT 20021 BoUNBARY N %
2 4 4 : @ . moowss assesson's
US] A @@ i PARCEL NUMBER

, ) 1 st
<3 i g T
: 0" (R
| <R
|
N F > o . | &
5 P V\\Y Hf ; Cw
— . APN 8026-001-042 3‘ ‘ £ 5:
5 % [ nar
X 2 i J3 B e %
P ?<l_ o 10.12 ACRES + "8 'E ii_! g:{’ g
< ® 8 e
N s | \_
|
S 2 :
s A ; 1
A AV 1
i uzr | |
§ 'naru!;abl T d : %
10 2 . §§I o w0 ?
54 |- APN .8026-001-042 § l _—sw_m 5= d
1.1 oy 3 SRR
O A o 6.05 ACRES + 3 2l =
\ Nl e [k g
N C ! /m"&‘r Y
' :

T Ln 2 a 177857

. F N BT46'38" W 0.50" : E

a . i

§ 2 N.A.P. P

§ e , 3

5. ra i :

: Rl AR
Q“ NA.P. sf .-:—1:7:‘—|l- [KARTH %
'~ % 3B LR
1 By % Lk S
%. ) = ' §§ l ;§ iz 1 N BO°48'55° W teosey
0 TANGENT TABLE: 218 K&——“‘” ; Bais i
0 b no,  osTANGE ARG } g{ 3475 . K 3 :'

SR AT S L EE figls i :
Q NJEE Aap Rl ENARY
' NEE T R :
T' dot g~ 1= g
i g‘cc,mas.w:mi'}!'n'/:{nu = r i I ¢
! 54 77487 \ \\, W | — , esaay \\! ',}/,smo
2% A ‘,’,‘Q‘,{':ﬁ,“f—& Lo uurtu‘sa‘ W 2647.89" \!:m “ o \ w.';'

Harris & Associates..



City of Santa Fe Springs

CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

October 28,2020

EXHIBIT B

Amended and Restated Rate and Method of

Apportionment of the Special Tax

Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT B October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page B-1

Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

AMENDED AND RESTATED RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT
OF SPECIAL TAX

This Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax amends and restates
in its entirety that certain Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax (the “Original Rate and
Method”). The Original Rate and Method was attached as Exhibit B to the Notice of Special Tax
Lien for City of Santa Fe Springs Community Facilities District No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)
(“CFD No. 2002-1”), which was recorded in the real property records of the County of Los Angeles
on January 9, 2003, as Document No. 03-0077048.

The Special Taxes as hereinafter defined shall be levied on all Assessor’s Parcels in CFD No. 2002-1
and collected each Fiscal Year commencing in Fiscal Year 2011-12, in the amounts determined as
described below. All of the real property in CFD No. 2002-1, unless exempted by law or by the
provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. DEFINITIONS
The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

"Act" means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,
Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

" Administrative Expenses" means the following actual or reasonably estimated costs directly related
to the administration of CFD No. 2002-1: the costs of computing the Special Taxes and preparing the
annual Special Tax collection schedules (whether by the City or designee thereof or both); the costs
of collecting the Special Taxes (whether by the City or otherwise); the costs to the City, CFD No.
2002-1 or any designee thereof of complying with disclosure requirements of the City, CFD No. 2002-
1 or obligated persons associated with applicable federal and state securities laws and the Act; the
costs associated with preparing Special Tax disclosure statements and responding to public inquiries
regarding the Special Taxes; the costs of the City, CFD No. 2002-1 or any designee thereof related to
any appeal of the Special Tax; and the City’s annual administration fees and third party expenses.
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts estimated by the CFD Administrator or advanced
by the City or CFD No. 2002-1 for any other administrative purposes of CFD No. 2002-1, including
attorney’s fees and other costs related to commencing and pursuing to completion any foreclosure of
delinquent Special Taxes. The maximum amount for the Administrative Expenses is set at $6,500 for
Fiscal Year 2011-12; the maximum amount for subsequent Fiscal Years shall be equal to (i) the
maximum amount for the Administrative Expenses for the previous year plus (ii) the product of
multiplying (A) the maximum amount for the Administrative Expenses for the previous year times (B)
the annual percentage change (if positive) in CPI for the preceding year ending in March.

" Annual Debt Service" means the annual amount of principal and interest required to satisfy the
$800,000 loan amount set forth in the Payment Agreement, over a 15 year period commencing Fiscal

Year 2011-12 (assuming no delinquencies) at an interest rate of 5.75%, assuming level payments.

" Assessor's Parcel' means a parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an assigned Assessor's
parcel number.

"Assessor's Parcel Map" means an official map of the Assessor of the County of Los Angeles
designating parcels by Assessor's Parcel number.

"Building Square Footage' means the building area as shown on the building permit.

N s s
] Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT B October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page B-2

Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

"CFD Administrator" means the person or firm that the City chooses to make responsible for
determining the Special Tax Requirement and providing for the levy and collection of the Special
Taxes.

"CFD No. 2002-1" means City of Santa Fe Springs Community Facilities District No. 2002-1
(Bloomfield-Lakeland).

“City” means the City of Santa Fe Springs.

""City Council" means the City Council of the City of Santa Fe Springs, acting as the legislative body
of CFD No. 2002-1.

"County" means the County of Los Angeles.

«CPI” means the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, for the Los Angeles, Riverside and
Orange County areas, published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or, if
such index is no longer published, a reasonably equivalent index selected by the CFD Administrator.

“Exempt Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels not subject to the Special Tax for Payment Amount
as described under Section L.

"Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

"Maintenance Expenses' means the expenses of the City, whether incurred by the City or designee
of the City, or both, in the furnishing of services (as defined in Section 53317 of the Act) and materials
for maintenance of certain streets as specified in condition No. 26 of the Development Plan Approval
No. 737-739 approved by the City’s Community Development Commission on March 14, 2002 and
attached as Exhibit B to the Payment Agreement. The maximum amount for Maintenance Expenses,
including reserve funding, is set at $5,663.58 for Fiscal Year 2016-17; the maximum amount for
subsequent Fiscal Years will be equal to (i) the Maintenance Expenses for the previous year plus (ii)
the product of multiplying (A) the Maintenance Expenses for the previous year times (B) the annual
percentage change (if positive) in CPI for the preceding year ending in March.

“Maximum Special Tax for Payment Amount" means the maximum Special Tax for Payment
Amount, determined in accordance with Section C below that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any
Assessor’s Parcel.

“Maximum Special Tax for Maintenance" means the maximum Special Tax for Maintenance,
determined in accordance with Section G below that can be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessot’s
Parcel.

"Parcel' means Assessor’s Parcel.

“Payment Agreement” means that certain Payment Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2002, by and
between the City and Bloomfield Partners, LLC, which Payment Agreement is attached as Exhibit A.

"Proportionately'" means for Taxable Property, in any Fiscal Year, that the ratio of the actual Special
Tax levy to the Maximum Special Tax is equal for all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property.

"Public Property" means any Assessor’s Parcel within the boundaries of CFD No. 2002-1 that is
transferred to a public agency or public utility on or after the date of formation of CFD No. 2002-1
and is used for rights-of-way, or any other purpose and is owned by, dedicated or irrevocably offered
for dedication to the federal government, the State of California, the County, the City, a public utility

EN s .
BN Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT B October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page B-3

Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

or any other public agency; provided however that any property leased by a public agency to a private
entity and subject to taxation under Section 53340.1 of the Act shall be taxed and classified in
accordance with its use. Privately-owned property that is otherwise constrained by public or utility
easements making impractical its utilization for other than the purposes set forth in the easement shall
be considered Public Property.

"Special Tax for Maintenance" means the special tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each
Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax for Maintenance Requirement.

"Special Tax for Maintenance Requirement" means that amount required in any Fiscal Year for
CFD No. 2002-1 equal to the maximum amount for Maintenance Expenses and the maximum amount
of Administrative Expenses.

"Special Tax for Payment Amount" means the special tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each
Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Special Tax for Payment Amount Requirement.

"Special Tax for Payment Amount Requirement' means that amount required in any Fiscal Year
for CFD No. 2002-1 equal to the Annual Debt Service.

""Special Taxes” means, collectively, the Special Tax for Payment Amount and the Special Tax for
Maintenance.

"State' means the State of California.

"Taxable Property' means all of the Assessor's Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2002-1
which are not Exempt Property.

B. CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTIES

All Assessors’ Parcels shall be classified as Taxable Property or Exempt Property.

Once classified as Taxable Property, a parcel may not be subsequently re-classified or changed to
Exempt Property without the Special Tax for Payment Amount being paid off in full in accordance
with Section E. The Special Tax for Maintenance cannot be prepaid and any parcel of Taxable
Property that is re-classified as Exempt Property with respect to the Special Tax for Payment
Amount shall remain subject to the Special Tax for Maintenance.

C. SPECIAL TAX FOR PAYMENT AMOUNT RATE

Maximum Special Tax for Payment Amount

The Maximum Special Tax for Payment Amount for Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property shall be
calculated for each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: the City shall calculate the Annual Debt Service for the Fiscal Year.

Second, the amount calculated in First shall be apportioned to all parcels of Taxable Property
Proportionately based on the amount of Building Square Footage.

D. MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

The Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valorem
property taxes; provided, however, that CFD No. 2002-1 may directly bill the Special Taxes, may

| g Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT B October 28, 2020
CFED No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page B-4

Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

collect Special Taxes at a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial
obligations, and may covenant to foreclose and may actually foreclose on delinquent Assessor’s
Parcels as permitted by the Act.

E. PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX FOR PAYMENT AMOUNT

The Special Tax for Payment Amount may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time.

F. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX FOR PAYMENT AMOUNT

The Special Tax for Payment Amount shall be levied on Taxable Property for a period not to exceed
15 years; provided, however, that the Special Tax for Payment Amount may be levied for a longer
period of time if, as a result of delinquencies in the payment of the Special Tax for Payment Amount,
it has not collected an amount sufficient to pay the Payment Sum (as defined in the Payment
Agreement).

G. SPECIAL TAX FOR MAINTENANCE RATE

Maximum Special Tax for Maintenance

Commencing with Fiscal Year 2011-12 and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the Council shall levy
the Special Tax for Maintenance on all Assessor’s Parcels of Taxable Property up to the applicable
Maximum Special Tax for Maintenance to fund the Special Tax for Maintenance Requirement.

The Special Tax for Maintenance Requirement shall be apportioned to all parcels of Taxable Property
Proportionately based on the amount of Building Square Footage.

H. TERM OF SPECIAL TAX FOR MAINTENANCE

The Special Tax for Maintenance shall be levied in perpetuity to fund the Special Tax for Maintenance
Requirement unless no longer required as determined at the sole discretion of the Council.

If the levy of the Special Tax for Maintenance is repealed by initiative or any other action participated
in by the owners of the Assessor’s Parcels in CFD 2002-1, the City shall have no obligation to provide
the services for which the Special Tax for Maintenance was levied.

1. EXEMPTIONS
The CFD Administrator shall classify Assessor’s Parcels of Public Property as Exempt Property.
Tax-exempt status will be assigned by the CFD Administrator in the chronological order in which
Assessor’s Parcels become Public Property. However, should an Assessor’s Parcel no longer be

classified as Public Property, its tax exempt status will be revoked.

J.  ENFORCEMENT

If not paid when due, the City shall have the right to foreclose any delinquent Special Tax for Payment
Amount by appropriate action in a court of competent jurisdiction, such action to include all court
costs, attorney fees and costs of sale.

1] . .
7] Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland)

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT AGREEMENT

En s :
7] Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT C October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page C-1
Payment Agreement

PAYMENT AGREEMENT

This Payment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of March
28, 2002, by and between the City of Santa Fe Springs (“City”), and Bloomfield Partners,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (together with its successor and assigns,
“Developer™).

Recitals

A. Developer intends to develop that certain real property located in City,
legally described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto (the “Property”).

B. On March 11, 2002, City’s Planning Commission granted Development
Plan Approval (“DPA No. 737-739”) for Developer’s proposed development of the
Property (the “Project”); on March 14, 2002, the Community Development Commission
of the City of Santa Fe Springs also approved DPA No. 737-739. A copy of DPA No.
737-739 is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and is incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth herein.

C. DPA No. 737-739 provides that the parties may enter into this Agreement.

D. Developer intends to apply for a subdivision of the Property (“Proposed
Subdivision™), pursuant to which the Property would be divided into three (3) separate
legal parcels. A number of the conditions contained in DPA No. 737-739, including, but
not limited to, those described in Section 1 below, were imposed in anncxpanon of said
Proposed Subdivision (the “Proposed Subdivision Conditions”).

E. The conditions imposed in conjunction with DPA No. 737-739 were
intended to address all impacts anticipated by the City and likely to arise in connection
with the full permitting and development of the Project (“Anticipated Impacts”).

Based on the Recitals set forth above and the mutual promises set forth below, the
parties agree as follows:

1. Developer shall pay to City the principal sum of $800,000.00 (the
“Payment Sum”) in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, which payment
shall constitute full satisfaction of the following, except as set forth in Sections 2 and 3,
below:

@) Developer’s obligations set forth in DPA No. 737-739 Condition
Nos. 5, 6,7, 14,21, 22, 25, 26.a and 27, as well as similar conditions that may be
imposed in respect of the Anticipated Impacts, including similar conditions that
may be imposed in respect of the Proposed Subdivision Conditions. Developer
shall not be obligated to construct any of the items described in such conditions,
and City holds Developer harmless from and against such obligations,
notwithstanding: (a) the fact that the Payment Sum has not yet been fully paid (so
long as Developer is making payments in accordance with Section 4 below); and
(ii) the failure of City to commence or complete such construction (although the
City shall have no obligation to Developer to undertake such construction).

1a-564021 1

Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT C October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page C-2
Payment Agreement

(ii)  Developer’s obligation to pay any City imposed fees or charges in
connection with the planning, permitting, or inspection of the Project
(collectively, the “Project Fees™), including, without limitation, fees and charges
in respect of (a) the City’s review, processing and approval of any building,
grading, drainage, utility, street and sidewalk, subdivision (including, without
limitation, any filing fees or map checking fees required in connection with the
Proposed Subdivision), environmental compliance (including, without limitation,
any fees required in connection with soil or methane gas monitoring programs),
excavation or similar plans, (b) any applications for building, mechanical,
electrical, plumbing, structural, occupancy, environmental, or similar permits, (c)
any building, grading, fire, health and safety, street and sidewalk or other
inspections; and (d) any development impact fees, including the City’s Heritage
Artwork in Public Places Program. .

2, In the event that the total amount chargeable to Developer in Project Fees
exceeds $300,000.00, then Developer shall pay to City the amount by which such Project
Fees exceed $300,000.00, prior to the issuance of any building permits for the Project,
The payment of such amount shall be a condition precedent to the issuance of any such
permits by City. Such payment shall be separate from, and in addition to, the payment of
$800,000.00, as described in Section 1, above.

3. As to DPA No. 737-738 Condition No. 25, the payment described in
Section 1, above, satisfies Developer’s obligations, except that it does not satisfy the
obligation to agree to adjustments to the existing Street Light Assessment District, as set
forth in Condition No. 25.

4. Developer shall pay the Payment Sum to City in accordance with the
following;:

A, Interest shall accrue at a fixed annual rate of Five and Three
Quarters Percent (5.75%), which both the City and Developer agree is the Prime
Rate plus One Hundred (100) basis points on the date of this Agreement, and shall
be payable in installments as set forth in Section 4B, Interest shall begin to accrue
as of the first date any Project Fees would have otherwise been due and payable to
the City but for the agreements set forth herein,

B. Developer shall make monthly installment payments of principal
and interest of $6,750.00 (“Installment Payments”), beginning and continuing as
provided in Section 4.C. That portion of the Installment Payments not allocated
to accrued interest under Section 4.A shall be allocated to the principal amount of
the Payment Sum, The parties hereto estimate that the term of the Installment
Payments will be 175 months,

C. Payment of Installment Payments shall begin on the first day of the
month following the Permit Anniversary Date, and shall continue on the first day
of each month thereafter until the Payment Sum has been paid in full,

1a-564021 2

[ 1] » :
1] Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT C October 28, 2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page C-3

Payment Agreement

D, As used herein, “Permit Anniversary Date” shall mean the date 12
months following issuance of first building permit for development of the
Property.

E. It is expressly stipulated and agreed to be the intent of the parties at
all times to comply with applicable state law regarding prevailing wages
(including, but not limited to, California Labor Code Sections 1720 and 1771) and
that this Section shall control every other covenant and agreement in this
Agreement and other related documents between the parties regarding the interest
rate paid thereunder. If the applicable prevailing wages law, for any reason, is
ever found or judicially interpreted to: (i) render the interest rate under this
Agreement to be a public works and/or paid for in whole or in part out of public
funds (and such interest rate does not comply with any de minimus exception
under the applicable prevailing wages law); and/or (ii) subject the terms of this
Agreement to prevailing wages, then it is the parties’ express intent that (1)
Bloomfield Partners LLC shall immediately pay to the City of Santa Fe Springs,
as to all payments previously made under this Agreement, the difference between
the interest rate paid pursuant to this Agreement and the appropriate interest rate
which would not subject this Agreement to prevailing wages, and (2) the
provisions of this Agreement and other related documents immediately be deemed
reformed to reflect the appropriate interest rate, without the necessity of the
execution of any new documents, so as to not subject the terms of this Agreement
to the applicable prevailing wages law.

Upon the commencement of Installment Payments, the parties agree to execute
and deliver in a timely fashion an agreement which specifically sets forth the
remaining term of the Developet’s obligations to make Installment Payments
under Section 4B above. Further, upon full repayment of the Payment Sum, City
shall provide to Developer, at Developer’s request, a letter or similar document
reasonably acceptable to Developer, confirming that the Developer’s payment
obligations under this Section 4 are satisfied.

5. In the event that the City approves the Proposed Subdivision, the Payment
Sum shall be apportioned between the newly created parcels, based on the relative square
footage of the building to be built on each parcel. As of the date of the recording of the
final parcel map for the Proposed Subdivision, the owner of each newly created parcel
shall be separately obligated to pay to City its apportioned share of the Payment Sum, and
shall be relieved of any liability to pay sums allocable to any other parcel owner. Inno
event shall a default by one parcel owner be attributable to any other parcel owner.

6. Developer shall secure the Payment Sum by providing City with security
as follows: a letter of credit in favor of the City obtained by Developer in the amount of
$800,000. The form of the letter of credit and any letter of credit agreement necessary to
describe the security arrangement shall be proposed by Developer and approved by the
City Attorney, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The letter of credit or
letter of credit agreement shall contain customary provisions releasing the security
provided thereby proportionately as the principal amount of the Payment Sum is reduced.

Ia-564021 3

|1 |- .
7] Harris & Associates..




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT C October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page C-4
Payment Agreement

The letter of credit or letter of credit agreement shall also contain provisions permitting
the Developer to replace existing security with other security of comparable value,
subject to approval by the City Attorney, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The approval and perfecting of such security is a condition precedent to City’s
issuance of any building permits for the Project.

7. Developer and City have agreed to form a Community Facilities District
No. 2002-1 (the “Community Facilities District”). After the Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Santa Fe Springs levying special taxes within such Community
Facilities District becomes effective, City acknowledges and agrees that all of
Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, except as specifically provided in this
Section 7 (collectively referred to herein as the “Payment Amount”) shall be deemed
fully satisfied and complied with including, without limitation, Developer’s obligation )
to pay the Payment Sum to the City or to satisfy the DPA Conditions as described in
Section 1, (ii) to provide security for the Payment Sum under Section 6, and any letter of
credit issued pursuant thereto shall be released by the City and terminated immediately
upon formation of the Community Facilities District, and (iii) to comply with the
conditions set forth in DPA No. 737-739 Condition No. 26. Provided, however,
Developer acknowledges and agrees that notwithstanding formation of the Community
Facilities District, Developer shall not be relieved of its obligation to pay to the City (a)
Project Fees in excess of $300,000 as, and to the extent, described in Section 2 above, or
(b) the amount equal to any adjustments to the existing Street Light Assessment District
as, and to the extent, described in Section 3 above.

8. This Agreement shall be assignable by Developer and (subject to Section
5 above) shall run with the land, inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties,
and all of their successors and assigns. In the event of an assignment of all or any portion
of Developer’s obligations, the assignor shall be relieved of liability as to that portion
assigned, but only if the security described in Section 6, above, is left in place, or
replaced with equivalent security, or the obligation is deemed satisfied pursuant to
Section 7 above.

9. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect
to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior agreements. No amendment hereto,
or waiver of any provision hereof, can be made except in a writing executed by both
parties. '

10.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
11.  Ifany lawsuit, arbitration, or other action is brought by either party against

the other party, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover the reasonable attorneys'
fees and court costs it incurred in connection therewith.

1a-564021 4

| 1| . :
7] Harris & Associates.




City of Santa Fe Springs EXHIBIT C October 28,2020
CFD No. 2002-1 (Bloomfield-Lakeland) Page C-5
Payment Agreement

Intending